
 

 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
 

Kern Medical 
1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 

Conference Room 1058 
Bakersfield, California 93306 

 
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, September 19, 2018 
 
 

11:30 A.M. 
 
 

BOARD TO RECONVENE 
 
 Board Members:  Berjis, Bigler, Brar, Lawson, McLaughlin, Pelz, Sistrunk 

Roll Call: 
 
CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT: ALL ITEMS LISTED 
WITH A "CA" ARE CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND NON-CONTROVERSIAL 
BY KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY STAFF. THE "CA" REPRESENTS THE 
CONSENT AGENDA. CONSENT ITEMS WILL BE CONSIDERED FIRST AND MAY 
BE APPROVED BY ONE MOTION IF NO MEMBER OF THE BOARD OR AUDIENCE 
WISHES TO COMMENT OR ASK QUESTIONS. IF COMMENT OR DISCUSSION IS 
DESIRED BY ANYONE, THE ITEM WILL BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT 
AGENDA AND WILL BE CONSIDERED IN LISTED SEQUENCE WITH AN 
OPPORTUNITY FOR ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
CONCERNING THE ITEM BEFORE ACTION IS TAKEN. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION SHOWN IN CAPS 
 

 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  9.19.18 
 
 

Page | 2  

 

 
PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 

 
1) This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the Board on any matter 

not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the Board. Board members may respond 
briefly to statements made or questions posed. They may ask a question for 
clarification, make a referral to staff for factual information or request staff to report 
back to the Board at a later meeting. Also, the Board may take action to direct the staff 
to place a matter of business on a future agenda. SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO 
MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL YOUR NAME BEFORE MAKING YOUR 
PRESENTATION. THANK YOU! 

 
BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 

 
2) On their own initiative, Board members may make an announcement or a report on 

their own activities. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff or 
take action to have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda (Government 
Code section 54954.2(a)(2)) 

 
RECOGNITION 

 
3) Presentation by the Chief Executive Officer recognizing Andrea Del Rio, Manager, 

Outpatient Clinic Registration and Ancillary Services as recipient of the California 
Association of Healthcare Admissions Management 2018 Carl Satterfield Award –  
MAKE PRESENTATION 

 
ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

 
CA 
4) Minutes for Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors regular meeting on  

August 15, 2018 –  
APPROVE 

 
CA 
5) Proposed updated Conflict of Interest policy and Conflict of Interest Code for the Kern 

County Hospital Authority –  
APPROVE; REFER CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE TO KERN COUNTY BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS FOR APPROVAL 
 

CA 
6) Proposed retroactive Schedule No. 9 to Agreement 2016-036 with Cerner Corporation, 

an independent contractor, containing nonstandard terms and conditions, for purchase 
of registration modules for the Millennium Project, effective August 28, 2018, in an 
amount not to exceed $89,476 over seven years –  

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  9.19.18 
 
 

Page | 3  

 

 
CA 
7) Proposed retroactive Schedule No. 10 to Agreement 2016-036 with Cerner 

Corporation, an independent contractor, containing nonstandard terms and conditions, 
for purchase of correctional medicine modules for the Millennium Project, effective 
August 31, 2018, for a term of 73 months, in an amount not to exceed $3,816,000 –  

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 
CA 
8) Proposed Amendment No. 16 to Agreement 180-99 with 3M Company, an independent 

contractor, for purchase of physician coding software, reimbursement logic and 
encoder for integration with the electronic health record, effective September 19, 2018, 
extending the term two months from July 17, 2023 through September 18, 2023, and 
increasing the maximum payable by $1,405,891 –  

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 
CA 
9) Proposed Amendment No. 2 to Agreement 06018 with Clarity Technology Partners, 

LLC, an independent contractor, for technology-related temporary staffing and 
contingent search services, increasing the maximum payable by $370,000, from 
$550,000 to $920,000, effective September 24, 2018 – 
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN  

 
CA 
10) Proposed Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 14818 with Healthcare Performance Group, 

Inc., an independent contractor, for professional consulting services for the electronic 
health record for the period June 11, 2018 through June 10, 2019, increasing the 
maximum payable by $217,000, from $233,000 to $450,000, effective September 19, 
2018 –  

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 
CA 
11) Proposed Statement of Work under the Agreement 00218 with Vector Resources, Inc. 

doing business as VectorUSA, an independent contractor, for the purchase of 
additional cabling, products and services for the Millennium Project, effective upon 
commencement of the project, in an amount not to exceed $414,139 –  

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 
CA 
12) Proposed Statement of Work under the Agreement 00218 with Vector Resources, Inc. 

doing business as VectorUSA, an independent contractor, for the purchase of 
additional Wi-Fi products and services, effective upon commencement of the project, 
in an amount not to exceed $282,701 – 

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  9.19.18 
 
 

Page | 4  

 

 
CA 
13) Proposed Amendment No. 2 to Agreement 20716 with J. Chandrasekhar, Inc., an 

independent contractor, for professional medical services in the Department of 
Medicine for the period October 15, 2016 through October 14, 2018, extending the term 
for one year from October 15, 2018 through October 14, 2019, and increasing the 
maximum payable by $380,000, from $760,000 to $1,140,000, to cover the extended 
term – 

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 
CA 
14) Proposed retroactive Agreement with Katayoun Sabetian, M.D., Inc., an independent 

contractor, for professional medical services in the Department of Medicine from 
September 1, 2018 through August 31, 2020, in an amount not to exceed $610,000 –  

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN  
 
CA 
15) Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 2016-051 with Mission Linen 

Supply, an independent contractor, for linen supply and laundry services for the period 
August 1, 2016 through July 31, 2018, extending the term for two years from August 1, 
2018 through July 31, 2020, and increasing the maximum payable by $2,500,000, from 
$1,880,000 to $4,380,000, to cover the extended term – 

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 
16) Proposed Memorandum of Understanding with Service Employees International Union, 

Local 521, for bargaining units 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6, effective September 19, 2018 through 
October 31, 2020, with changes to wages, hours, and terms and conditions of 
employment –  
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN; AUTHORIZE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER, CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER, AND HUMAN RESOURCES TO 
IMPLEMENT CHANGES 

 
17) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Financial Officer report –  
 RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
18) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Executive Officer report –  
 RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
CA 
19) Claims and Lawsuits Filed as of August 31, 2018 –  

RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
 
ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 

 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  9.19.18 
 
 

Page | 5  

 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

20) Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health practitioners (Health and 
Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) –  

 
21) Request for Closed Session for the purpose of discussion or taking action on authority 

trade secrets (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1)) – 
 
22) CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS - Kern County Assessor 

Parcel Number: 120-181-54; Property Owners: Mushtaq Ahmed and Rehmat Ahmed; 
Agency Negotiators: Russell V. Judd, Chief Executive Officer and Scott Thygerson, 
Chief Strategy Officer; Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Payment (Government 
Code Section 54956.8) –  

 
23) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Maria McCoy v. Kern 
Medical Center, Workers’ Compensation Appeals Board Case No. ADJ7197264 – 

 
24) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  
 (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), (e)(2).) Number of cases: Two (2) 

Significant exposure to litigation in the opinion of the Board of Governors on the advice 
of legal counsel, based on: Facts and circumstances, including, but not limited to, an 
accident, disaster, incident, or transactional occurrence that might result in litigation 
against the Authority and that are known to a potential plaintiff or plaintiffs –  

 
25) CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Agency designated representatives: 

Chief Executive Officer Russell V. Judd, and designated staff - Employee 
organizations: Unrepresented Employees (Government Code Section 54957.6) – 

 
26) CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Agency designated representatives: 

Vice President & General Counsel Karen S. Barnes and designated staff – 
Unrepresented Employee: Chief Executive Officer (Government Code Section 
54957.6) – 

 
27) PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION - Title: Chief Executive Officer 

(Government Code Section 54957) – 
 
 
RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
REPORT ON ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
ADJOURN TO WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 17, 2018, AT 11:30 A.M. 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  9.19.18 
 
 

Page | 6  

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION FOR AGENDA ITEMS 
 
All agenda item supporting documentation is available for public review at Kern Medical 
Center in the Administration Department, 1700 Mount Vernon Avenue, Bakersfield, 93306 
during regular business hours, 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, following the 
posting of the agenda.  Any supporting documentation that relates to an agenda item for an 
open session of any regular meeting that is distributed after the agenda is posted and prior to 
the meeting will also be available for review at the same location.   

 
 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 
(Government Code Section 54953.2) 

 

The Kern Medical Center Conference Room is accessible to persons with disabilities. 
Disabled individuals who need special assistance to attend or participate in a meeting of the 
Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors may request assistance at Kern Medical 
Center in the Administration Department, 1700 Mount Vernon Avenue, Bakersfield, California, 
or by calling (661) 326-2102. Every effort will be made to reasonably accommodate individuals 
with disabilities by making meeting material available in alternative formats. Requests for 
assistance should be made five (5) working days in advance of a meeting whenever possible. 
  



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  9.19.18 
 
 

Page | 7  

 

19) CLAIMS AND LAWSUITS FILED AS OF AUGUST 31, 2018 – 
RECEIVE AND FILE  
 

A) Summons and Petition for Relief from Claim Presentation Requirement in the matter of 
Kathryn A. Kodner, Laurie Kodner, and Michael Kodner  

B) Summons and First Amended Complaint for Damages in the matter of Martin L. 
Goldman, M.D. v. Kern County Hospital Authority, et al., Kern County Superior Court 
Case No. BCV-18-100390 

C) Claim and Notice to Preserve Evidence in the matter of Melissa Hammond 
D) Claim in the matter of Nuha Abousamra 
E) Letter of Representation and Notice to Preserve Evidence in the matter of Kevin A. 

Milstred 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 

SUMMARY OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
 

Kern Medical 
1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 

Conference Room 1058 
Bakersfield, California 93306 

 
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, August 15, 2018 
 
 

11:30 A.M. 
 
 

BOARD RECONVENED 
 
Directors Present: Berjis, Bigler, Brar, Lawson, McLaughlin, Pelz  
Directors Absent: Sistrunk 
 
NOTE: The vote is displayed in bold below each item. For example, Lawson-McLaughlin 
denotes Director Lawson made the motion and Vice Chair McLaughlin seconded the motion. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT: ALL ITEMS LISTED WITH 
A "CA" WERE CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND APPROVED BY ONE MOTION. 

 
BOARD ACTION SHOWN IN CAPS 

 
 

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 
 

1) This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the Board on any matter 
not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the Board. Board members may respond 
briefly to statements made or questions posed. They may ask a question for 
clarification, make a referral to staff for factual information or request staff to report 
back to the Board at a later meeting. Also, the Board may take action to direct the staff 
to place a matter of business on a future agenda. SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO 
MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL YOUR NAME BEFORE MAKING YOUR 
PRESENTATION. THANK YOU! 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                   
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                             
  8.15.18 
 
 

Page | 2  
 

 
AMANDA TORRES, CASE MANAGEMENT OFFICE SERVICE SPECIALIST, 
JENNY SANTOS, EMERGENCY CARE CENTER PATIENT CARE TECHINICIAN, 
CHERI ANCHETA, OUTPATIENT PHARMACY TECHNICIAN, AND ROSIE 
KIDWELL, SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION, LOCAL 521 
REPRESENTATIVE, HEARD REGARDING ONGOING LABOR NEGOTIATIONS 
AND PENSION SECURITY 

 
 

BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 
 
 
2) On their own initiative, Board members may make an announcement or a report on 

their own activities. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff or 
take action to have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda (Government 
Code section 54954.2(a)(2)) 

 
 

ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
 
CA 
3) Minutes for Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors regular meeting on  

July 18, 2018 –  
APPROVED 
Lawson-Pelz: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Sistrunk 

 
CA 
4) Proposed Agreement with Change Healthcare Technologies, LLC, an independent 

contractor, containing nonstandard terms and conditions, for purchase of InterQual® 
software for case management and quality review to support the Cerner Millennial 
project, for a term of four years, effective August 15, 2018, in an amount not to exceed 
$250,000 –  
APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 050-2018 
Lawson-Pelz: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Sistrunk 
 

CA 
5) Proposed Agreement with Stericycle, Inc., an independent contractor, containing 

nonstandard terms and conditions, for regulated pharmaceutical and hazardous waste 
disposal services for a term of 36 months, effective August 15, 2018, in an amount not 
to exceed $266,000 – 

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 051-2018 
 Lawson-Pelz: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Sistrunk 
 
 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                   
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                             
  8.15.18 
 
 

Page | 3  
 

 
CA 
6) Proposed Agreement with Stericycle, Inc., an independent contractor, containing 

nonstandard terms and conditions, for regulated sharps disposal management services 
for a term of 36 months, effective August 15, 2018, in an amount not to exceed 
$282,000 – 
APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 052-2018 
Lawson-Pelz: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Sistrunk 
 

CA 
7) Proposed Agreement with Presidio Networked Solutions Group, LLC, an independent 

contractor, containing nonstandard terms and conditions, for lease of equipment, 
software and services for information technology data storage to support the Cerner 
Millennial project, effective August 15, 2018 – 
APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 053-2018; 
AUTHORIZED CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN STATEMENTS OF WORK 
Lawson-Pelz: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Sistrunk 

 
CA 
8) Proposed Agreement with Presidio Technology Capital, LLC, an independent 

contractor, containing nonstandard terms and conditions, for financing of equipment, 
software and services for information technology data storage to support the Cerner 
Millennial project for a term of 39 months, effective on the first day of the month 
following receipt of equipment and/or software, in an amount not to exceed $2,017,548 
APPROVED; ADOPTED RESOLUTION 2018-010; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO 
SIGN AGREEMENT 054-2018 

 Lawson-Pelz: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Sistrunk 
 
CA 
9) Proposed Agreement with Amin Ahmed Ramzan, M.D., a contract employee, for 

professional medical services in the Department of Obstetrics and Gynecology from 
August 17, 2019 through August 16, 2022, in an amount not to exceed $1,815,000 – 

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 055-2018 
 Pelz-Berjis: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Sistrunk 
 
CA 
10) Proposed Change Order No. 7 to Agreement 21118 with Anderson Group International, 

an independent contractor, for construction management services related to the 
Pharmacy USP 797 Clean Room modifications, increasing the maximum payable by 
$6,431, from $699,510 to $705,941, to cover the cost of additional services –  

 MADE FINDING PROJECT IS EXEMPT FROM FURTHER CEQA REVIEW PER 
SECTIONS 15301 AND 15061(b)(3) OF STATE CEQA GUIDELINES; APPROVED; 
AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 056-2018 

 Lawson-Pelz: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Sistrunk 
 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                   
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                             
  8.15.18 
 
 

Page | 4  
 

11) Request of the Medical Staff of Kern Medical Center to create a Division of Trauma 
and Critical Care within the Department of Surgery –  

 APPROVED 
 McLaughlin-Pelz: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Sistrunk 
 
12) Proposed Agreement with Acute Care Surgery Medical Group, Inc., an independent 

contractor, for trauma and general surgery hospitalist services in the Department of 
Surgery from November 5, 2018 through October 31, 2022, in an amount not to exceed 
$20,510,331 – 

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 057-2018 
 Brar-Lawson: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Sistrunk 
 
13) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Financial Officer report –  
 RECEIVED AND FILED 
 Berjis-McLaughlin: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Sistrunk 
 
14) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Executive Officer report –  
 RECEIVED AND FILED 
 Pelz-Brar: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent – Sistrunk 
 
CA 
15) Claims and Lawsuits Filed as of July 31, 2018 –  

RECEIVED AND FILED 
 Lawson-Pelz: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent – Sistrunk 
 
 
ADJOURNED TO CLOSED SESSION 
McLaughlin-Berjis 

 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

16) Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health practitioners (Health and 
Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) – SEE RESULTS BELOW 

 
17) CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Agency designated representatives: 

Chief Executive Officer Russell V. Judd, and designated staff - Employee 
organizations: Service Employees International Union, Local 521; Unrepresented 
Employees (Government Code Section 54957.6) – SEE RESULTS BELOW 

 
18) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  
 (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Eric vanSonnenberg, M.D. 

v. County of Kern, et al., Kern County Superior Court Case No. BCV-15-100859 – SEE 
RESULTS BELOW 

 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                   
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                             
  8.15.18 
 
 

Page | 5  
 

19) Request for Closed Session for the purpose of discussion or taking action on authority 
trade secrets (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1)) – SEE RESULTS 
BELOW 

 
20) PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION - Title: Chief Executive Officer 

(Government Code Section 54957) – SEE RESULTS BELOW 
 
 
RECONVENED FROM CLOSED SESSION 
Lawson-McLaughlin 
 
 
REPORT ON ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 

Item No. 16 concerning Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health 
practitioners (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) – HEARD; BY A 
UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THOSE DIRECTORS PRESENT (MOTION BY DIRECTOR 
LAWSON, SECOND BY DIRECTOR PELZ; 1 ABSENT - DIRECTOR SISTRUNK), 
THE BOARD APPROVED PRACTITIONERS RECOMMENDED FOR INITIAL 
APPOINTMENT, REAPPOINTMENT, RELEASE OF PROCTORING; VOLUNTARY 
RESIGNATION OF PRIVILEGES, AND AUTOMATIC TERMINATION OF 
PRIVILEGES; NO OTHER REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 
 
Item No. 17 concerning CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Agency 
designated representatives: Chief Executive Officer Russell V. Judd, and designated 
staff - Employee organizations: Service Employees International Union, Local 521; 
Unrepresented Employees (Government Code Section 54957.6) – HEARD; NO 
REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 
 
Item No. 18 concerning CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING 
LITIGATION (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Eric 
vanSonnenberg, M.D. v. County of Kern, et al., Kern County Superior Court Case No. 
BCV-15-100859 – HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 
 
Item No. 19 concerning Request for Closed Session for the purpose of discussion or 
taking action on authority trade secrets (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1)) 
– HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 
 
Item No. 20 concerning PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION -  
Title: Chief Executive Officer (Government Code Section 54957) – HEARD; NO 
REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 

 
 
ADJOURNED TO WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 19, 2018, AT 11:30 A.M. 
Berjis 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                   
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                             
  8.15.18 
 
 

Page | 6  
 

 
 
 
/s/ Mona A. Allen 

Authority Board Coordinator 
 
 
 
/s/ Russell E. Bigler 

Chairman, Board of Governors 
 Kern County Hospital Authority 
 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS  

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 
  

September 19, 2018  

  

SUBJECT: Proposed Conflict of Interest Policy for Kern County Hospital Authority  

  

Recommended Action: Approve; Refer to Kern County Board of Supervisors for Approval 

  

Summary:  

  

The enabling county ordinance at section 2.170.102 requires the Hospital Authority and its officers and 
directors to conduct activities in a manner this is in conformity with the laws of the state of California 
as they pertain to conflicts of interest, including, but not limited to the Political Reform Act (Gov. Code, 
§ 81000 et seq.), financial interests involving contracts (Gov. Code, § 1090), common law conflicts of 
interest,1 and incompatible activities.2   
 
The purposes of this policy are: (1) to preserve the integrity of the decision‐making process of the 
Hospital Authority, (2) to prevent intentional or inadvertent participation in the decision‐making 
process by persons having an actual or apparent conflict of interest, (3) to promote compliance with 
the process by which conflicts of interest are disclosed and managed in accordance with state laws, 
and (4) to prevent violations of state conflict of interest laws.  
 
Government Code section 87306.5 requires the Hospital Authority to submit a biennial report 
identifying changes in its conflict of interest code (or a statement that the code is not in need of 
amendment) to the Board of Supervisors, the code reviewing body for the Hospital Authority, no later 
than October 1 of each even‐numbered year.  The attached reflects our recommended changes to the 
policy and conflict of interest code.  The proposed changes have been reviewed and approved as to 
legal form by counsel. 
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the conflict of interest policy for the Kern 
County Hospital Authority and refer to the Kern County Board of Supervisors for approval.  
 
 

                                                       
1 Each member of the Hospital Authority Board of Governors and officers shall discharge his or her duties with integrity 

and fidelity and may not let private interests influence public decisions.  
2 In accordance with Section 101855(o) of the Health and Safety Code, a member of the Hospital Authority’s 

administrative staff shall not be considered to hold an incompatible office or to be engaged in activities inconsistent 

and incompatible with his or her duties as a result of his or her employment or affiliation with the County of Kern or an 

agency of the County.  
  



1 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY KERN 
COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 

 
SUBJECT: Conflict of Interest 

 
POLICY STATEMENT: 

 
It is the policy of the Kern County Hospital Authority (“Hospital Authority”) to provide for a 
process for the disclosure and management of conflicts of interest which may exist for persons 
with positions of trust and responsibility in the governance and management of the Hospital 
Authority, and to assure that state law provisions1 relating to such conflicts are followed.  In 
order to safeguard independent judgment and action in business decisions, each person entrusted 
with a key position of responsibility in the Hospital Authority has a duty to disclose actual or 
potential conflicts of interest, to avoid acting out of any actual or apparent conflict of interest 
which may arise from personal financial interests in entities which may conflict with the 
Hospital Authority’s best interests. The purposes of this policy are: (i) to preserve the integrity 
of the decision-making process of the Hospital Authority, (ii) to prevent intentional or 
inadvertent participation in the decision-making process by persons having an actual or apparent 
conflict of interest, (iii) to promote compliance with the process by which conflicts of interest 
are disclosed and managed in accordance with state laws, and (iv) to prevent violations of state 
conflict of interest laws. 

 
DEFINITIONS: 

 
A. “Covered Individual” means those individuals identified in the attached Appendix A. 

 
B. “Financial interest” means for purposes of this policy a Covered Individual has a 

“financial interest” in a decision if it is reasonably foreseeable that the decision will have 
a material financial effect, distinguishable from its effect on the public generally, on the 
employee or an immediate family member or on: (1) any business entity in which the 
Covered Individual has a direct or indirect investment worth $1,000 or more; (2) any real 
property in which the Covered Individual has a direct or indirect interest worth $1,000 or 
more; (3) any source of income, other than gifts and other than loans by a commercial 
lending institution in the regular course of business on terms available to the public 
without regard to official status, aggregating $4702 or more in value provided to, 
received by or promised to the Covered Individual within 12 months prior to the time 
when the decision is made; (4) any business or entity in which the Covered Individual is 
a director, officer, partner, trustee, employee, or holds any position of management; and 
(5) any donor of, or any intermediary or agent for a donor of, a gift or gifts aggregating 
$470 or more in value provided to, received by or promised to the Covered Individual 
within 12 months prior to the time when the decision is made. 

 
 
 

1 Government Code section 1090; Government Code section 81000 et seq. 
2 California Fair Political Practices Commission gift limit effective January 1, 2017 - December 31, 2018. 



2 
 

C. “Immediate family member” means the Covered Individual’s spouse; natural or adoptive 
parent, child or sibling; stepparent, stepchild, stepbrother or stepsister; father-in-law, 
mother-in-law, brother-in-law or sister-in-law; grandparent or grandchild; or spouse of a 
grandparent or grandchild. 

 
D. “Indirect investment or interest” means any investment or interest owned by the spouse 

or dependent child of the Covered Individual, by an agent on behalf of the Covered 
Individual, or by a business entity or trust in which the Covered Individual, or Covered 
Individual’s agent, spouse, and dependent children own directly, indirectly, or 
beneficially a 10% interest or greater. 

 
1.0 ACTS CONSTITUTING CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 
A. No Covered Individual shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise that results 

in any of the following: 
 

1. Using the prestige or influence of a Hospital Authority office or employment for 
private gain or advantage, or the private gain or advantage of another; 

2. Using Hospital Authority time, facilities, equipment or supplies for the Covered 
Individual’s private gain or advantage, or the private gain or advantage of another; 

3. Using confidential information acquired by virtue of Hospital Authority office or 
employment for the Covered Individual’s private gain or advantage, or the private 
gain or advantage of another; 

4. Receiving or accepting money or any other consideration from anyone other than the 
Hospital Authority for the performance of an act which the Covered Individual would 
be required or expected to render in the regular course or hours of office or 
employment or as part of duties as a Covered Individual; 

5. Performance of an act in other than the Covered Individual’s capacity knowing that 
such act may later be subject, directly or indirectly, to the control, inspection, review, 
audit or enforcement by the Covered Individual or by the Hospital Authority; 

6. Make, participate in making or in any way attempt to use the Covered Individual’s 
position to influence a governmental decision (other than a decision affecting an 
employee’s wages, hours, or working conditions) in which the Covered Individual 
knows or has reason to know that the Covered Individual has a financial interest; or 

7. Non-Hospital Authority employment or self-employment outside of regular working 
hours which involves such time demands or services of such a character as to impair 
effectiveness of Hospital Authority employment. 

 
B. Any violation of the provisions contained in the aforementioned section shall constitute 

sufficient grounds for disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment. 
 
2.0 EXEMPTION FOR CERTAIN PHYSICIAN SERVICES 

 
Those physicians rendering professional services to Kern Medical Center or other 
Hospital Authority businesses under contract authorizing billing for services to non- 
indigent patients shall not be deemed to be in violation of the provisions of Section 1.0 of 
this policy in billing for such services so rendered. 



3 
 

3.0 POST-EMPLOYMENT RETRICTIONS REGARDING REPRESENTATION, 
APPEARANCE OR COMMUNICATION 

 
A. Employees classified as management, mid-management or confidential, shall not, for a 

period of one year after leaving employment, act as agent or attorney for, or otherwise 
represent, for compensation, any other person, by making any formal or informal 
appearance before, or by making any oral or written communication to the Hospital 
Authority or a present member of the Board of Governors or any officer or employee of 
the Hospital Authority if the appearance or communication is made for the purpose of 
influencing administrative action, or influencing any action or proceeding involving the 
issuance, amendment, awarding, or revocation of a permit, license, grant, or contract, or 
the sale or purchase of goods or property. 

 
B. Subsection A shall not apply to any individual who is, at the time of the appearance or 

communication, a board member, officer, or employee of a local government agency or 
an employee or representative of any other public agency and is appearing or 
communicating on behalf of that agency. 

 
C. The following definitions shall apply for purposes of Sections 3.0 and 4.0 only: 

 
1. “Administrative action” means the proposal, drafting, development, consideration, 

amendment, enactment, or defeat by the Hospital Authority of any matter, including 
any rule, regulation, or other action in any regulatory proceeding, whether quasi-
legislative or quasi-judicial. Administrative action does not include any action that 
is solely ministerial. 

2. “Legislative action” means the drafting, introduction, modification, enactment, 
defeat, approval, or veto of any ordinance, amendment, resolution, report, 
nomination, or other matter by the Board of Governors or by any committee or 
subcommittee thereof, or by a member of the Board of Governors acting in his or her 
official capacity. 

3. “Person” shall mean an individual, proprietorship, firm, partnership, joint venture, 
syndicate, business trust, company, corporation, limited liability company, 
association, committee, and any other organization or group of persons acting in 
concert. 

 
D. This Section and Section 4.0 are adopted in accordance with Government Code 

section 87406.3(c). 
 
4.0 POST-EMPLOYMENT RESTRICTIONS REGARDING AID, ADVICE OR 

COUNSEL 
 

Employees classified as management, mid-management or confidential, shall not, for a 
period of one year after leaving that office or employment, for compensation, aid, advise, 
counsel, consult or assist any other person regarding an appearance or communication 
which the official or employee would be prohibited from making under Section 3.0. 



4 
 

5.0 CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 
 

A. The Political Reform Act requires state and local government agencies, which includes 
the Hospital Authority to adopt and promulgate conflict of interest codes. (Gov. Code, § 
81000 et seq.) The Fair Political Practices Commission has adopted a regulation, which 
contains the terms of a standard conflict of interest code. (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 2, § 
18730.) Incorporation by reference of the terms of the regulation along with the 
designation of employees and the formulation of disclosure categories set forth in the 
attached Appendix A constitute the adoption and promulgation of the conflict of interest 
code of the Hospital Authority. The requirements of this conflict of interest code are in 
addition to other requirements of the Political Reform Act, such as the general prohibition 
against conflicts of interest contained in Section 87100, and to other state or local laws 
pertaining to conflicts of interest. 

 
B. Designated Covered Individuals identified in the attached Appendix A shall file 

statements of economic interests with the Hospital Authority, who will make the 
statements available for public inspection and reproduction. (Gov. Code, § 81008.) 
Upon receipt of the statements of the Chairman and Members of the Board of Governors 
of the Hospital Authority, the Hospital Authority shall make and retain a copy and 
forward the original of these statements to the Board of Supervisors of the County of 
Kern. Statements for all other designated Covered Individuals shall be retained by the 
Hospital Authority. 

 
C. Government Code Section 87306.5 requires local agencies, which includes the Hospital 

Authority to submit to their code reviewing body, which, in the case of the Hospital 
Authority is the Kern County Board of Supervisors, a biennial report identifying changes 
in its conflict of interest code, or a statement that their code is not in need of amendment. 
An amendment is required to: (1) include new positions (including consultants) that must 
be designated; (2) revise the titles of existing positions; (3) deleted titles of positions that 
have been abolished; (4) deleted positions that manage public investments from the list of 
designated positions; (5) revise disclosure categories; and (6) other. No amendment is 
required if the Hospital Authority’s code accurately designates all positions that make or 
participate in the making of governmental decisions; the disclosure categories assigned to 
those positions accurately require the disclosure of all investments, business positions, 
interests in real property and sources of income that may foreseeably be affected 
materially by the decisions made by those designated positions; and the code includes all 
other provisions required by Government Code Section 87302. Such report shall be 
submitted no later than October 1 of each even-numbered year. (Gov. Code, § 
87306.5(a).) When completed, the report must be mailed to the Clerk of the Board of 
Supervisors. 



5 
 

APPENDIX A 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
DESIGNATED COVERED INDIVIDUALS 

 
 
Assistant Pharmacy Director 
Associate Hospital Administrator, Behavioral Health (contract service) 
Associate Hospital Administrator, Trauma and Surgery (contract service) 
Associate Director of Medical Education 
Authority Board Coordinator (contract service) 
Chairman and Members of the Board of Governors 
Chief Academic Officer 
Chief Executive Officer (contract service) 
Chief Financial Officer (contract service) 
Chief Information Officer 
Chief Medical Officer (contract service) 
Chief Nursing Officer 
Chief Operating Officer (contract service) 
Chief Quality Officer 
Chief Strategy Officer (contract service) 
Clinical Directors (all) 
Consultants * 
Contract Administrator 
Contract Compliance Manager (contract service) 
Credit Card Holders (all) 
Decision Support Specialist (contract service) 
Director, Business Office (contract service) 
Director, Care Coordination (contract service) 
Director, Change Management (contract service) 
Director, Clinical Laboratory Services 
Director, Communications (contract service) 
Director, Community Wellness (contract service) 
Director, Employee and Labor Relations 
Director, Finance (contract service) 
Director, Human Resources Operations (contract service) 
Director, Outpatient Integration (contract service) 
Director, Patient Access (contract service) 
Director, Performance Improvement (contract service) 
Director, Pharmacy Services 
Director, Physician Recruitment (contract service) 
Director, Population Health (contract service) 
Director, Radiology 
Director, Whole Person Care (contract service) 
EVS Director (contract service) 
Finance Contract Compliance Manager (contract service) 
Financial Planning Director (contract service) 
Fiscal Support Supervisor (assigned to General Accounting or Accounts Payable) 



6 
 

Fiscal Support Technician (assigned to Materials Management) 
Front End Revenue Cycle Manager – EMR (contract service) 
Front End Revenue Cycle Manager – Inpatient and Emergency Department (contract service) 
Front End Revenue Cycle Manager – Patient Financial Counseling and Outpatient Clinics (contract 
service) 
Front End Revenue Cycle Manager – Pre-registration and Authorization (contract service) 
General Accounting Manager 
Health Information Services Director 
Hospital Business Office Manager 
Hospital Business Office Supervisor  
Hospital Counsel 
Health Facilities Director (contract service) 
Hospital Materials Director (contract service) 
Hospital Materials Manager 
Hospital Payroll Manager (contract service)  
Hospital Security Director (contract service) 
Managed Care Consultant (contract service) 
Manager, Decision Support (contract service) 
Manager of Reimbursement (contract service) 
Materials Management Operations Manager (contract service) 
Medical Staff Department Chairs (all) 
Medical Staff Division Chiefs (all) 
Medical Staff Officers (elected officers only) 
Patient Access Services Supervisor 
Physician Billing Manager (contract service) 
Revenue Cycle AR Administration Manager (contract service) 
Revenue Cycle Systems Support Manager (contract service) 
Revenue Integrity Manager (contract service) 
Senior Paralegal  
Special Projects Manager (contract service) 
Therapy Services Manager 
Vice President & General Counsel 
Vice President, Administrative Services (contract service) 
Vice President, Ambulatory Services (contract service) 
Vice President, Human Resources (contract service) 
Workers’ Compensation and Liability Manager 
 
 
*Consultants shall be included in the list of designated Covered Individuals and shall disclose 
pursuant to the broadest disclosure category in the code subject to the following limitation: The 
Chief Executive Officer may determine in writing that a particular consultant, although a 
“designated position,” is hired to perform a range of duties that is limited in scope and thus is not 
required to comply fully with the disclosure requirements described in the Kern County Hospital 
Authority Conflict of Interest Code. Such written determination shall include a description of the 
consultant’s duties and, based upon that description, a statement of the extent of disclosure 
requirements. The Chief Executive Officer’s determination is a public record and shall be retained 
for public inspection in the same manner and location as the Conflict of Interest Code. 
 
 



7 
 

 
DISCLOSURE CATEGORY 

 
Designated Covered Individuals shall report all sources of income, interests in real property, and 
investments and business positions in business entities. 



1 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE  POLICY 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 

 
SUBJECT: Conflict of Interest 

 
POLICY STATEMENT: 

 
It is the policy of the Kern County Hospital Authority (“Hospital Authority”) to provide for a 
process for the disclosure and management of conflicts of interest which may exist for persons 
with positions of trust and responsibility in the governance and management of the Hospital 
Authority, and to assure that state law provisions1 relating to such conflicts are followed.  In 
order to safeguard independent judgment and action in business decisions, each person entrusted 
with a key position of responsibility in the Hospital Authority has a duty to disclose actual or 
potential conflicts of interest, to avoid acting out of any actual or apparent conflict of interest 
which may arise from personal financial interests in entities which may conflict with the 
Hospital Authority’s best interests. The purposes of this policy are: (i) to preserve the integrity 
of the decision-making process of the Hospital Authority, (ii) to prevent intentional or 
inadvertent participation in the decision-making process by persons having an actual or apparent 
conflict of interest, (iii) to promote compliance with the process by which conflicts of interest 
are disclosed and managed in accordance with state laws, and (iv) to prevent violations of state 
conflict of interest laws. 

 
DEFINITIONS: 

 
A. “Covered Individual” means those individuals identified in the attached Appendix A. 

 
B. “Financial interest” means for purposes of this policy a Covered Individual has a 

“financial interest” in a decision if it is reasonably foreseeable that the decision will have 
a material financial effect, distinguishable from its effect on the public generally, on the 
employee or an immediate family member or on: (1) any business entity in which the 
Covered Individual has a direct or indirect investment worth $1,000 or more; (2) any real 
property in which the Covered Individual has a direct or indirect interest worth $1,000 or 
more; (3) any source of income, other than gifts and other than loans by a commercial 
lending institution in the regular course of business on terms available to the public 
without regard to official status, aggregating $4604702 or more in value provided to, 
received by or promised to the Covered Individual within 12 months prior to the time 
when the decision is made; (4) any business or entity in which the Covered Individual is 
a director, officer, partner, trustee, employee, or holds any position of management; and 
(5) any donor of, or any intermediary or agent for a donor of, a gift or gifts aggregating 
$460 470 or more in value provided to, received by or promised to the Covered 
Individual within 12 months prior to the time when the decision is made. 

 
 
 

1 Government Code section 1090; Government Code section 81000 et seq. 
2 California Fair Political Practices Commission gift limit effective January 1, 2015 2017 - December 31, 20162018. 



2 
 

C. “Immediate family member” means the Covered Individual’s spouse; natural or adoptive 
parent, child or sibling; stepparent, stepchild, stepbrother or stepsister; father-in-law, 
mother-in-law, brother-in-law or sister-in-law; grandparent or grandchild; or spouse of a 
grandparent or grandchild. 

 
D. “Indirect investment or interest” means any investment or interest owned by the spouse 

or dependent child of the Covered Individual, by an agent on behalf of the Covered 
Individual, or by a business entity or trust in which the Covered Individual, or Covered 
Individual’s agent, spouse, and dependent children own directly, indirectly, or 
beneficially a 10% interest or greater. 

 
1.0 ACTS CONSTITUTING CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 
A. No Covered Individual shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise that results 

in any of the following: 
 

1. Using the prestige or influence of a Hospital Authority office or employment for 
private gain or advantage, or the private gain or advantage of another; 

2. Using Hospital Authority time, facilities, equipment or supplies for the Covered 
Individual’s private gain or advantage, or the private gain or advantage of another; 

3. Using confidential information acquired by virtue of Hospital Authority office or 
employment for the Covered Individual’s private gain or advantage, or the private 
gain or advantage of another; 

4. Receiving or accepting money or any other consideration from anyone other than the 
Hospital Authority for the performance of an act which the Covered Individual would 
be required or expected to render in the regular course or hours of office or 
employment or as part of duties as a Covered Individual; 

5. Performance of an act in other than the Covered Individual’s capacity knowing that 
such act may later be subject, directly or indirectly, to the control, inspection, review, 
audit or enforcement by the Covered Individual or by the Hospital Authority; 

6. Make, participate in making or in any way attempt to use the Covered Individual’s 
position to influence a governmental decision (other than a decision affecting an 
employee’s wages, hours, or working conditions) in which the Covered Individual 
knows or has reason to know that the Covered Individual has a financial interest; or 

7. Non-Hospital Authority employment or self-employment outside of regular working 
hours which involves such time demands or services of such a character as to impair 
effectiveness of Hospital Authority employment. 

 
B. Any violation of the provisions contained in the aforementioned section shall constitute 

sufficient grounds for disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment. 
 
2.0 EXEMPTION FOR CERTAIN PHYSICIAN SERVICES 

 
Those physicians rendering professional services to Kern Medical Center or other 
Hospital Authority businesses under contract authorizing billing for services to non- 
indigent patients shall not be deemed to be in violation of the provisions of Section 1.0 of 
this policy in billing for such services so rendered. 



3 
 

3.0 POST-EMPLOYMENT RETRICTIONS REGARDING REPRESENTATION, 
APPEARANCE OR COMMUNICATION 

 
A. Employees classified as management, mid-management or confidential, shall not, for a 

period of one year after leaving employment, act as agent or attorney for, or otherwise 
represent, for compensation, any other person, by making any formal or informal 
appearance before, or by making any oral or written communication to the Hospital 
Authority or a present member of the Board of Governors or any officer or employee of 
the Hospital Authority if the appearance or communication is made for the purpose of 
influencing administrative action, or influencing any action or proceeding involving the 
issuance, amendment, awarding, or revocation of a permit, license, grant, or contract, or 
the sale or purchase of goods or property. 

 
B. Subsection A shall not apply to any individual who is, at the time of the appearance or 

communication, a board member, officer, or employee of a local government agency or 
an employee or representative of any other public agency and is appearing or 
communicating on behalf of that agency. 

 
C. The following definitions shall apply for purposes of Sections 3.0 and 4.0 only: 

 
1. “Administrative action” means the proposal, drafting, development, consideration, 

amendment, enactment, or defeat by the county Hospital Authority of any matter, 
including any rule, regulation, or other action in any regulatory proceeding, whether 
quasi-legislative or quasi-judicial. Administrative action does not include any action 
that is solely ministerial. 

2. “Legislative action” means the drafting, introduction, modification, enactment, 
defeat, approval, or veto of any ordinance, amendment, resolution, report, 
nomination, or other matter by the board of supervisorsBoard of Governors or by any 
committee or subcommittee thereof, or by a member of the board of 
supervisorsBoard of Governors acting in his or her official capacity. 

3. “Person” shall mean an individual, proprietorship, firm, partnership, joint venture, 
syndicate, business trust, company, corporation, limited liability company, 
association, committee, and any other organization or group of persons acting in 
concert. 

 
D. This Section 3.0 and Section 4.0 are adopted in accordance with Government Code 

section 87406.3(c). 
 
4.0 POST-EMPLOYMENT RESTRICTIONS REGARDING AID, ADVICE OR 

COUNSEL 
 

Employees classified as management, mid-management or confidential, shall not, for a 
period of one year after leaving that office or employment, for compensation, aid, advise, 
counsel, consult or assist any other person regarding an appearance or communication 
which the official or employee would be prohibited from making under Section 3.0. 



4 
 

5.0 CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 
 

A. The Political Reform Act requires state and local government agencies, which includes 
the Hospital Authority to adopt and promulgate conflict of interest codes. (Gov. Code, § 
81000 et seq.) The Fair Political Practices Commission has adopted a regulation, which 
contains the terms of a standard conflict of interest code. (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 2, § 
18730.) Incorporation by reference of the terms of the regulation along with the 
designation of employees and the formulation of disclosure categories set forth in the 
attached Appendix A constitute the adoption and promulgation of the conflict of interest 
code of the Hospital Authority. The requirements of this conflict of interest code are in 
addition to other requirements of the Political Reform Act, such as the general prohibition 
against conflicts of interest contained in Section 87100, and to other state or local laws 
pertaining to conflict conflicts of interest. 

 
B. Designated Covered Individuals identified in the attached Appendix A shall file 

statements of economic interests with the Hospital Authority, who will make the 
statements available for public inspection and reproduction.  (Gov. Code, § 81008.) 
Upon receipt of the statements of the Chairman and Members of the Board of Governors 
of the Hospital Authority, the Hospital Authority shall make and retain a copy and 
forward the original of these statements to the Board of Supervisors of the County of 
Kern. Statements for all other designated Covered Individuals shall be retained by the 
Hospital Authority. 

 
C. Government Code Section 87306.5 requires local agencies, which includes the Hospital 

Authority to submit to their code reviewing body, which, in the case of the Hospital 
Authority is the Kern County Board of Supervisors, a biennial report identifying changes 
in its conflict of interest code, or a statement that their code is not in need of amendment. 
An amendment is required to: (1) include new positions (including consultants) that must 
be designated; (2) revise the titles of existing positions; (3) deleted titles of positions that 
have been abolished; (4) deleted positions that manage public investments from the list of 
designated positions; (5) revise disclosure categories; and (6) other. No amendment is 
required if the hospital Hospital authority’s Authority’s code accurately designates all 
positions that make or participate in the making of governmental decisions; the 
disclosure categories assigned to those positions accurately require the disclosure of all 
investments, business positions, interests in real property and sources of income that may 
foreseeably be affected materially by the decisions made by those designated positions; 
and the code includes all other provisions required by Government Code Section 87302. 
Such report shall be submitted no later than October 1 of each even-numbered year. 
(Gov. Code, § 87306.5(a).) When completed, the report must be mailed to the Clerk of 
the Board of Supervisors. 



5 
 

APPENDIX A 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
DESIGNATED COVERED INDIVIDUALS 

 
Administrative Assistant (all) (contract service) 
Assistant Pharmacy Director 
Associate Hospital Administrator for Operations 
Associate Hospital Administrator, Behavioral Health (contract service) 
Associate Hospital Administrator, Trauma and Surgery (contract service) 
Associate Director of Medical Education 
Authority Board Coordinator (contract service) 
Cardiopulmonary Services Clinical Coordinator 
Chairman and Members of the Board of Governors 
Chief Academic Officer (contract service) 
Chief Deputy County Counsel (contract service) 
Chief Executive Officer (contract service) 
Chief Financial Officer (contract service) 
Chief Information Officer Kern Medical Center 
Chief Medical Officer (contract service) 
Chief Nursing Officer 
Chief Operating Officer (contract service) 
Chief Quality Officer 
Chief Strategy Officer (contract service) 
Clinic Practice Manager (contract service) 
Clinical Directors (all) 
Clinical Supervisors  
Consultants * 
Contract Administrator 
Contract Compliance Manager (contract service) 
Credit Card Holders (all) 
Deputy County Counsel (contract service)  
Decision Support Specialist (contract service) 
Director of Business OfficeDirector, Business Office (contract service) 
Director, Care Coordination (contract service) 
Director, Change Management (contract service) 
Director, Clinical Laboratory Services 
Director, Communications (contract service) 
Director, Community Wellness (contract service) 
Director, Employee and Labor Relations 
Director of FinanceDirector, Finance (contract service) 
Director of Human Resources OperationsDirector, Human Resources Operations (contract service) 
Director, Outpatient Integration (contract service) 
Director of Patient AccessDirector, Patient Access (contract service) 
Director, Performance Improvement (contract service) 
Director of Pharmacy ServicesDirector, Pharmacy Services 
Director, Physician Recruitment (contract service) 
Director, Population Health (contract service) 



6 
 

Director, Radiology 
Director, Whole Person Care (contract service) 
EVS Director (contract service) 
Finance Contract Compliance Manager (contract service) 
Financial Planning ManagerFinancial Planning Director (contract service) 
Fiscal Support Supervisor (assigned to General Accounting or Accounts Payable) 
Fiscal Support Technician (assigned to Materials Management) 
Front End Revenue Cycle Manager – EMR (contract service) 
Front End Revenue Cycle Manager – Inpatient and Emergency Department (contract service)  
Front End Revenue Cycle Manager – Patient Financial Counseling and Outpatient Clinics (contract 
service) 
Front End Revenue Cycle Manager – Pre-registration and Authorization (contract service) 
General Accounting Manager 
Health Information Services Director 
Health Information Services Supervisor  
Hospital Business Office Manager 
Hospital Business Office Supervisor  
Hospital Chief Financial Officer  
Hospital Controller 
Hospital Counsel 
Health Facilities Director (contract service) 
Hospital Facilities Manager 
Hospital Information Systems Manager 
Hospital Materials Director (contract service) 
Hospital Materials Manager 
Hospital Shift Manager 
Hospital Payroll Manager (contract service) 
Hospital Risk Manager 
Hospital Security Director (contract service) 
Managed Care Consultant (contract service) 
Manager, Cardiopulmonary Services 
Manager, Clinical Laboratory Services 
Manager of Benefits and Compensation (contract service) 
Manager of Decision SupportManager, Decision Support (contract service) 
Manager, Organizational Development  
Manager of Reimbursement (contract services service) 
Materials Management Operations Manager (contract service) 
Medical Staff Department ChairChairs (all) 
Medical Staff Division ChiefChiefs (all) 
Medical Staff Officers (elected officers only) 
Nursing Quality Assessment & Standards Coordinator 
Patient Access Services Manager 
Patient Access Services Supervisor 
Physician Billing Manager (contract service) 
Radiology Manager 
Revenue Cycle AR Administration Manager (contract service) 
Revenue Cycle Systems Support Manager (contract servicesservice) 
Revenue Integrity Manager (contract service) 
Senior Paralegal  
Senior Pharmacist 



7 
 

Special Projects Manager (contract service) 
Supervisor of Hospital Materials Management  
Therapy Services SupervisorTherapy Services Manager 
Vice President & General Counsel 
Vice President, Administrative Services (contract service) 
Vice President, Ambulatory Services (contract service) 
Vice President, Human Resources (f/k/a Senior Director, Human Resources) (contract servicesservice) 
Workers’ Compensation and Liability Manager 
 
 
*Consultants shall be included in the list of designated Covered Individuals and shall disclose 
pursuant to the broadest disclosure category in the code subject to the following limitation: The 
Chief Executive Officer may determine in writing that a particular consultant, although a 
“designated position,” is hired to perform a range of duties that is limited in scope and thus is not 
required to comply fully with the disclosure requirements described in the Kern County Hospital 
Authority Conflict of Interest Code.  Such written determination shall include a description of the 
consultant’s duties and, based upon that description, a statement of the extent of disclosure 
requirements. The Chief Executive Officer’s determination is a public record and shall be retained 
for public inspection in the same manner and location as the Conflict of Interest Code. 
 
 
 

DISCLOSURE CATEGORY 
 
Designated Covered Individuals shall report all sources of income, interests in real property, and 
investments and business positions in business entities. 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
September 19, 2018 
 
Subject:  Proposed retroactive Schedule No. 9 to Agreement HA2016‐036 with Cerner Corporation, an 

independent contractor, containing nonstandard terms and conditions, for purchase of additional modules for 
the Millennium Project 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 

 
Summary:  
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve the proposed agreement with Cerner Corporation for purchase of 
on‐line Insurance Verification/Eligibility document imaging interface, Patient Estimate interface and Address 
Verification applications.  Cerner is the contracted vendor for the EHR for the Kern County Hospital Authority. 
This is an amendment within scope of the EHR project and is in accord with previous Cerner amendments. Board 
approval is recommended to approve 1 time Cerner fees of $20,542.00 and monthly fees post implementation 
of $2,874 or $34,448 per year x 2 years NTE $89,476 (includes the $20,542.00 onetime Cerner fees). 
 
Non approval of the transition services from Experian to Cerner amendment will cause disruption of automated 
insurance eligibility & verification and automated data posting  back into the revenue cycle system (CPA) 
circumventing access to hospital benefit information required to estimate patient co‐pays, deductibles and out 
of pocket expenses using the Patient Payment Estimator application, thus creating risk of decreased POS 
collections, billing claim errors related to revenue reclassification, discharge planning delays, reliance on manual 
& time consuming eligibility & verification processes requiring access to various payer websites (requiring PIN#s 
and system administrators), loss ability to archive and retrieve scanned data, increased returned mail & 
potential increase of bad debt expenses, and lend to decreased patient satisfaction. 
 
The Agreement contains non‐standard terms and cannot be approved as to form by Counsel due to possible 
increases in fees throughout the duration of the agreement, assignment of payments with no approval from 
KCHA, third‐party terms that apply to provided hardware and software without approval of Counsel, and auto‐
renewal of term.    
 
 
 
 























 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 
 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
September 19, 2018 
 
Subject:  Proposed  retroaction  Schedule  10  to  Agreement  HA2016‐036  with  Cerner  Corporation,  an 

independent  contractor,  containing  nonstandard  terms  and  conditions,  for  the  purchase  of 
implementation  and  customization  services,  hardware,  and  licensing  to  be  used  at  County  of  Kern 
Correctional Medicine facilities. 

 

Requested Action: Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 

 

Summary:  

Kern Medical requests your Board approve the proposed agreement with Cerner Corporation for the 
purchase of implementation and customization services, hardware, and licensing to be used at County 
of Kern Correctional Medicine facilities.  Kern Medical currently provides healthcare services within the 
County of Kern’s Correctional facilities; including Lerdo Max‐Med, Lerdo Pretrial, Central Receiving 
Facility, Justice Facility, Juvenile Hall, Camp Erwin Owen and Crossroads. Currently, medical records for 
services provided at the correctional facilities are kept in paper form and not available electronically 
which delays treatment when additional care is required outside of the correctional facility. This lack of 
portability hinders the continuum of care while incarcerated and leads to redundancies, inefficiencies, 
and a cumbersome transition to the post‐incarceration healthcare setting.  

 
Kern Medical is requesting your Board’s authorization of this agreement to implement and customize, 
purchase hardware and secure licensing for the use of Cerner’s Electronic Health Record (EHR) at the 
correctional facilities. As the provider of services at the correctional facilities, Kern Medical develops a 
budget working collaboratively with the Kern County Sheriff Office (KCSO) and the Kern County 
Administrative Office (CAO). Kern Medical is currently working with the CAO to provide for the 
reimbursement of these costs through the correctional medicine agreement. 

 
The $3,816,000 is comprised of a one‐time up‐front payment of $2,688,001, monthly fees of $8,750 and 
annual fees of $34,811, $32,950, $32,950, $32,950, $32,486, $32,486, and $2,708 in years 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 
and 7, respectively.  
 
The Agreement contains non‐standard terms and cannot be approved as to form by Counsel due to 
possible increases in fees throughout the duration of the agreement, assignment of payments with no 
approval from KCHA, third‐party terms that apply to provided hardware and software without approval 
of Counsel, and auto‐renewal of term.    

 

 































































 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
September 19, 2018 
 
Subject:  Proposed Amendment No. 16 to Agreement 180‐99 with 3M Company, an independent contractor, 

for purchase of physician coding software, reimbursement logic and encoder for integration with the electronic 
health record 

 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 

 
Summary: 
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve the proposed Amendment No. 16 with 3M to provide specialty 
coding and reimbursement software for five years, increasing the maximum payable by $1,405,891.  
 
Encoders are software programs that help guide the coder through the various coding conventions and rules to 
arrive at a correct diagnosis, procedural, or service code. The encoder and APR/DRG grouping software is a vital 
piece of the revenue cycle. It aids in accuracy, compliance, coding productivity, and reimbursement functions. 
3M also offers webinars designed to assist with continuing education for coders. Coding is required for claims to 
be submitted for payment. 
 
This amendment includes, the addition of software that will include logic for physician coding and 
reimbursement that will be interfaced with the Cerner EHR. Currently and retrospectively, the physician coding 
has been dependent on a stand‐alone system which was not connected to the electronic health record or billing 
system.  The addition of an integrated software for physician coding and reimbursement will provide a method 
to capture any edits, before they cause a claim that fails the clean claim process prior to being billed out.  
 
Cerner does not offer an integrated or embedded functionality for physician coding and reimbursement. They 
have software to capture failed accounts after they have been coded. This software will elevate the current 
process for this part of the revenue cycle and provide it the same functionality as the facility coding and 
reimbursement has.  
 
 
 
 
 









 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

  
  
September 19, 2018 
  
Subject:  Proposed Amendment No. 2 to the Master Services Agreement and Supplements with Clarity 

Technology Partners dated March 26, 2018 

 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 

 
Summary: 
 
The proposed extension of professional services with Clarity Technology Partners is required to support the 
ongoing needs of the Cerner Millennium project.  
 
Through this amendment, Clarity will provide an Electronic Healthcare Record Consultant at $125/hr relating to 
the Cerner Millennium project requirements in Revenue Cycle, Patient Access, and Billing.  
 
The proposed Amendment is effective September 24, 2018 with a updated not to exceed of $920,000.  
 

 
 
 











 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

  
  
September 19, 2018 
  
Subject:  Proposed Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 14818 with Healthcare Performance Group, Inc., 
to provide professional consulting services for the electronic health record 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary: 
 
The proposed Amendment No. 1 with Healthcare Performance Group (HPG) is required to support the 
ongoing needs of the Cerner Millennium project.   
 
Through this amendment, HPG will provide an Electronic Healthcare Record Consultant at $138/hr 
relating to the Cerner Millenium project requirements in Health Information Management (HIM) 
including the 3M implementation, and other local support.  
 
The proposed Amendment is effective September 19, 2018 with a not to exceed of $217,000 for the 
additional professional fees and travel expenses.   
 

 
 
 



1 
 

Amendment No. 1 To  
Agreement for Professional Consulting Services 

(Healthcare Performance Group, Inc. - Kern County Hospital Authority) 
 

This Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement for Professional Consulting Services is entered into this 
______ day of __________________ 2018, by and between Kern County Hospital Authority, a 
local unit of government, which owns and operates Kern Medical Center (CUSTOMER) and 
Healthcare Performance Group, (HPG).   
 

RECITALS 
 

A. Customer and HPG have heretofore entered into an Agreement for Professional 
Consulting Services (Customer Agt.#14818, dated May 11, 2018) for the period of June 
11, 2018 through June 10, 2019, to provide professional consulting services; and  

 
B. Customer requires additional services of HPG and HPG has agreed to provide 
these services; and 

 
C. The parties agree to amend certain terms and conditions of the Agreement as 
hereinafter set forth; and  

 
D. The Agreement is amended effective September 19, 2018. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions 

hereinafter set forth and incorporating by this reference the foregoing recitals, the parties hereto 
agree to amend the Agreement as follow: 

 
1. Schedule A-2  
 
Schedule A-2, to Amendment No. 1 is added to the Agreement and incorporated herein 

by this reference. 
  
2. Except as otherwise defined herein, all capitalized terms used in this Amendment 

No. 1 have the meaning set forth in the Agreement.  
 
3. This Amendment No. 1 shall be governed by and construed in accordance with 

the laws of the state of California.  
 
4. This Amendment No. 1 may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be 

deemed an original, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument.  
 
5.  Except as provided herein, all other terms, conditions, and covenants of the 

Agreement and any and all amendments thereto shall remain in full force and effect.  
 
 
 



2 
 

IN WITNESS TO THE FOREGOING, the Parties have executed this Amendment No. 1 as of 
the day and year first written above.  
 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY HEALTHCARE PERFORMANCE 

GROUP, INC.   
 
By_______________________   By ____________________________ 
    Russell Bigler     Printed Name:___________________        
    Chairman, Board of Governors   Title/Position:____________________   
    
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 
Kern Medical Center 
 
By_______________________    
    Reynaldo Lopez 
    Chief Information Officer 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
Legal Services Department 
 
By_______________________    
    Hospital Counsel 
    Kern County Hospital Authority 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chad Terstriep

President



3 
 

Schedule “A-2” 

 

Project Background 
 
 
CUSTOMER has licensed the Millennium clinical applications from Cerner Corporation and is in 
the process of implementing and supporting these applications.   CUSTOMER requires additional 
support in the capacity of a Senior Millennium Consultant, Kayla Smith. Key responsibilities of 
this project engagement are as follows: 
 

 
PROJECT ROLE AND DETAILS TO BE APPROVED BY CUSTOMER:   

• Provide best practice, workflows, education and knowledge transfer to the team 
members for HIM 

• Complete the build and design as delegated by the CUSTOMER 
• Support and provide documentation on the maintenance for the build completed 
• Kayla will work with CUSTOMER to facilitate meetings, tasks and project 

deliverables for this project  
• Kayla will provide additional expertise to other Millennium applications as requested 

by Customer 
• Kayla will also follow the Cerner EHR Consultant Job Description that will be 

attached to the Master Service Agreement.   
 

Engagement Scope and Approach  
 
HPG will provide the services of Kayla Smith.  Kayla will assist the CUSTOMER in the project 
as described above and will report to Mr. Reynaldo Lopez.  Kayla will begin this engagement 
immediately following the September 19th Board of Governors approval, starting Monday, 
October 1, 2018 and provide services on a continuous, ongoing and full-time basis.  CUSTOMER 
agrees to provide HPG with a 45 day notice of termination for these services of termination for 
these services. 
 
Fees, Timing & Payment 
 
The professional service fee for these services is $138 per hour. CUSTOMER commits to a total 
of 1360 hours for this project. Additional hours will require an addendum for extension.  This 
Schedule A-2 has a not-to-exceed amount is $217,000 including professional fees and estimated 
travel expenses, with 75% travel onsite.  

Professional services fees and reasonable travel and out of pocket expenses in accordance with 
Schedule I, will be invoiced biweekly.  Should this engagement extend beyond 12 consecutive 
months, HPG may adjust the rate based upon agreement by both parties, but no more than 5%.  The 
Invoice will be sent to the attention of Brenda Reed, at Brenda.Reed@KernMedical.com. 



4 
 

Payment is expected by either (   ) electronic payment* or by (X) check and is due within 30 
days of the Invoice Date.  Any unpaid balances still due 30 days from the Invoice Date will accrue 
a late charge at a rate of 1.0% per month. HPG does not accept credit card payments. 

This Schedule A-2 is an addition to the Master Service Agreement and Schedule A-1 (Jacqui Pada).  

All other terms and conditions of the original Agreement remain unchanged. 

ACCEPTED by: 

CUSTOMER: 

SIGNATURE:  ________________________  DATE:_____________ 

HPG: 

SIGNATURE:__________________________    DATE:_____________ 
 
*ABA routing number: 101100045; *Account number: 005048626030; Address: 
Healthcare Performance Group, Inc., P.O. Box 588, Spring Hill, KS 66083 
 

9/11/18



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

  
  
September 19, 2018 
  
Subject:  Proposed Statement of Work under the Master Services Agreement Agt. #00218, dated 
January 1, 2018, with Vector Resources, Inc. dba VectorUSA 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary: 
 
The proposed statement of work with VectorUSA is required to meet the Cerner Millennium project’s 
requirements through the improvement of infrastructure technology components. The proposed 
services include the cabling for the new IDF network closets that were included in the 2016 
infrastructure plan. The statement of work provides a new high‐speed network cable to the new and 
remodeled Kern Medical data and telecom closets. The additional cabling is required to integrate the 
new closets into the current Kern Medical network. 
 
The proposed Statement of Work shall be effective upon commencement of the project, scheduled to 
begin September 2018, and is scheduled to be completed November 2021, in an amount not to exceed 
$414,139 which includes cabling, cable accessories, CAD documentation, a site survey, labor and travel 
costs.  
 

 
 
 





















 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

  
  
September 19, 2018 
  
Subject:  Proposed Statement of Work under the Master Services Agreement Agt. #00218, dated 
January 1, 2018, with Vector Resources, Inc. dba VectorUSA 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary: 
 
The proposed statement of work with VectorUSA is required to meet the Cerner Millennium project’s 
requirements through the improvement of infrastructure technology components  
 
The proposed services include the Wi‐Fi cabling, additional professional services, installation of up to 
60 new wireless access points, relocation of up to 80 wireless access points, Wi‐Fi design, and post 
install survey, validation, travel costs and labor.  
 
The proposed Statement of Work shall be effective upon commencement of the project, scheduled to 
begin September 2018, and is scheduled to be completed November 2021, in an amount not to exceed 
$282,701 which includes design, survey, engineering, installation and cabling.  
 

 
 
 



















 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
September 19, 2018 
 
Subject:  Proposed Amendment No. 2 to Agreement 20716 with J. Chandrasekhar, Inc. 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary: 
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve the proposed Amendment No. 2 with  
J. Chandrasekhar, Inc. to provide professional medical services to patients needing pulmonary and 
critical care services as well as teaching services to resident physicians.  Dr. Chandrasekhar has 
provided the contracted services indicated above at Kern Medical since 2010. 
 
The proposed amendment extends this agreement by one year and expires October 14, 2019.  The 
maximum payable under this Agreement shall not exceed $1,140,000 over the three years of the 
agreement that commenced October 15, 2016.   
 



 1 

AMENDMENT NO. 2  

TO  

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

(Kern County Hospital Authority – J. Chandrasekhar, Inc.) 
 

This Amendment No. 2 to the Agreement for Professional Services is made and entered 

into this _____ day of __________, 2018, between the Kern County Hospital Authority, a local 

unit of government (“Authority”), which owns and operates Kern Medical Center (“KMC”), and 

J. Chandrasekhar, Inc., a California professional medical corporation (“Contractor”), with its 

principal place of business located at 12713 Crown Crest Drive, Bakersfield, California 93311. 

 

RECITALS 

 

(a) Authority and Contractor have heretofore entered into an Agreement for 

Professional Services (Agt. #20716, dated October 15, 2016) and Amendment No. 1 (Agt. #067-

2017, dated October 18, 2018) (the “Agreement”), for the period October 15, 2016 through 

October 14, 2018, to provide professional medical services to patients of KMC and teaching 

services to resident physicians; and 

 

(b) The Agreement expires October 14, 2018; and  

 

(c) Authority continues to require the services of Contractor; and  

 

(d) It is the intent of the parties to have the terms of the Agreement provide for the 

payment of all reasonably projected costs and expenses related to the services provided by 

Contractor; and 

 

(e) The parties agree to amend certain terms and conditions of the Agreement as 

hereinafter set forth; and 

 

 (f) The Agreement is amended effective October 15, 2018; 

 

  NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions 

hereinafter set forth and incorporating by this reference the foregoing recitals, the parties hereto 

agree to amend the Agreement as follows: 

 

1. Section 1, Term, shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 

 

“1. Term.  The term of this Agreement shall commence October 15, 2016 (the 

“Effective Date”), and shall end October 14, 2019, unless earlier terminated pursuant to 

other provisions of this Agreement as herein stated.” 

 

2. Section 4, Payment for Services, paragraph 4.4, Maximum Payable, shall be deleted in its 

entirety and replaced with the following: 

 



 2 

“4.4 Maximum Payable.  The maximum payable under this Agreement shall 

not exceed $1,140,000 over the three-year term of this Agreement.” 

 

3. All capitalized terms used in this Amendment and not otherwise defined, shall have the 

meaning ascribed thereto in the Agreement. 

 

4. This Amendment shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 

state of California. 

 

5.  This Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an 

original, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

 

6. Except as provided herein, all other terms, conditions and covenants of the Agreement 

and any and all amendments thereto shall remain in full force and effect.  

 

[Signatures follow on next page] 

 

 



 3 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment No. 2 to the 

Agreement as of the day and year first written above. 

 

J. CHANDRASEKHAR, INC. 

 

 

By_______________________ 

     Jayaraman Chandrasekhar, M.D.  

     Its President 

 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 

 

 

By_______________________ 

    Chairman 

    Board of Governors     

 

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

KERN MEDICAL CENTER 

 

 

By_______________________ 

    Russell V. Judd 

    Chief Executive Officer 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

LEGAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

 

 

By_______________________ 

    VP & General Counsel 

    Kern County Hospital Authority 

 

 
Amend2.Chandrasekhar.082418 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
September 19, 2018 
 
Subject:  Proposed Agreement for Professional Services with Katayoun Sabetian, M.D., Inc. 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve, Authorize Chief Executive Officer to sign 
 
Summary:   
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve an Agreement for Professional Services with Katayoun Sabetian, 
M.D., Inc., for professional medical services in the Department of Medicine.  Such services include medical care 
to neurology patients and teaching services to resident physicians as well as providing medical director services 
of the stroke program.   
 
Dr. Sabetian also assists in the training programs related to this medical specialty to resident physicians 
employed by Kern Medical.  
 
Payment for Services are as follows: 
 

 Medical Director Services ‐ Contractor shall be paid an hourly rate of $150 per hour not to exceed 40 hours 
per month for services as Medical Director of the stroke program. 

 Neurology Coverage ‐ Contractor shall be compensated as follows: (i) Contractor shall be paid a fixed fee of 
$500 for each neurology clinic attended; (ii) Contractor shall be paid a per diem rate of $350 per day for 
neurology rounds and consultations; (iii) Contractor shall be paid a per diem rate of $75 for weekday night 
call coverage (Monday through Thursday, 5:00 p.m. to 8:00 a.m.); (iv) Contractor shall be paid a fixed fee of 
$300 for weekend call coverage (Friday, 5:00 p.m. to Monday, 8:00 a.m.); and (v) Contractor shall be paid 
prevailing Medi‐Cal rates for each adult EEG, nerve conduction study and EMG interpreted by Contractor. 

 Didactic Lectures ‐ Contractor shall be paid a fixed fee of $300 per lecture, which includes preparation time 
and lecture presentation 

 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the Agreement for Professional Services with Katayoun 
Sabetian, M.D., Inc., for professional medical services in the Department of Medicine, from September 1, 2018 
through August 31, 2020, in an amount not to exceed $610,000, and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to 
sign. 



1 
 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

(Hospital Authority – Katayoun Sabetian, M.D., Inc.)                                                         
 
This Agreement is made and entered into this _____ day of __________, 2018, between 

the Kern County Hospital Authority, a local unit of government (“Authority”), which owns and 
operates Kern Medical Center (“KMC”), and Katayoun Sabetian, M.D., Inc., a California 
professional medical corporation (“Contractor”), with its principal place of business located at 
2323 16th Street, Suite 206, Bakersfield, California 93301. 

 
I. 

RECITALS 
 

(a) Authority is authorized, pursuant to section 101852 of Part 4 of Division 101 of 
the Health and Safety Code, to contract for special services with individuals specially trained, 
experienced, expert, and competent to perform those services; and 
 
 (b) Authority owns and operates KMC, a general acute care hospital located at 1700 
Mount Vernon Avenue, Bakersfield, California, and affiliated clinics (collectively, the 
“Premises”), in which is located the Department of Medicine (the “Department”); and   
 
 (c) Contractor is a California professional medical corporation with medical doctors 
(collectively, “Group Physicians” or individually, “Group Physician”) who provide services on 
behalf of Contractor; and 
 

(d) KMC has developed a stroke program that meets the accreditation standards of 
The Joint Commission for certification as a Primary Stroke Center; and 

 
(e) Authority requires the assistance of Contractor to provide professional medical 

and administrative services at KMC and teaching services to resident physicians employed by 
Authority, as such services are unavailable from Authority resources, and Contractor agrees to 
provide such services on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement; and  

 
 (f) Contractor has special knowledge, training and experience, and is qualified to 
render such services;  
  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions 
hereinafter set forth and incorporating by this reference the foregoing recitals, the parties hereto 
agree as follows:  
 

II. 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
1. Term.  The term of this Agreement shall commence September 1, 2018 (the “Effective 
Date”), and shall end August 31, 2020, unless earlier terminated pursuant to other provisions of 
this Agreement as herein stated.      



2 
 

2. Obligations of Contractor.  
 

 2.1 Specified Services.  Contractor shall render those services set forth in Exhibit 
“A,” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.  Such services may be changed 
from time to time by agreement of the parties in accordance with the provisions of this 
Agreement.   
    

2.2 Representations.  Contractor makes the following representations which are 
agreed to be material to and form a part of the inducement for this Agreement: (i) Contractor has 
the expertise and support staff necessary to provide the services described in this Agreement; and 
(ii) Contractor does not have any actual or potential interests adverse to Authority nor does 
Contractor represent a person or firm with an interest adverse to Authority with reference to the 
subject of this Agreement; and (iii) Contractor shall diligently provide all required services in a 
timely and professional manner in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in this 
Agreement. 

 
2.3 Standard of Care.  Authority has relied upon the professional ability and training 

of Contractor as a material inducement to enter into this Agreement.  Contractor hereby agrees 
that all of its work will be performed and that its operations shall be conducted in accordance 
with generally accepted and applicable professional practices and standards as well as the 
requirements of applicable federal, state and local laws, it being understood that acceptance of 
Contractor’s work by Authority shall not operate as a waiver or release. 

 
2.4 Performance Standard.  Contractor shall perform all services hereunder in a 

manner consistent with the level of competency and standard of care normally observed by a 
person practicing in Contractor’s profession.  If Authority determines that any of Contractor’s 
work is not in accordance with such level of competency and standard of care, Authority, in its 
sole discretion, shall have the right to do any or all of the following: (a) require Contractor to 
meet with Authority to review the quality of the work and resolve matters of concern; (b) 
terminate this Agreement pursuant to the provisions of section 36; or (c) pursue any and all other 
remedies at law or in equity.  

 
 2.5 Assigned Personnel.  Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to perform 
the Services hereunder.  In the event that at any time Authority, in its sole discretion, desires the 
removal of any person or persons assigned by Contractor to perform the services hereunder, 
Contractor shall remove such person or persons immediately upon receiving written notice from 
Authority.  Group Physicians providing services under this Agreement include, without 
limitation, Katayoun Sabetian, M.D. 

 
2.6 Qualifications of Group Physicians.   
 

2.6.1 Licensure/Board Certification.  Group Physicians shall at all times during 
the term of this Agreement be duly licensed physicians and surgeons in the state of 
California, practicing in the medical specialty of neurology, and certified by or eligible 
for certification by the American Board of Psychiatry and Neurology in neurology-
general and sleep medicine-subspecialty. 



3 
 

2.6.2 Medical Staff Status.  Each Group Physician shall at all times during the 
term of this Agreement be a member in good standing of the KMC medical staff with 
“active” or “courtesy” staff status and hold all clinical privileges on the active or courtesy 
medical staff appropriate to the discharge of his or her obligations under this Agreement. 

 
2.6.3 TJC and ACGME Compliance.  Each Group Physician shall observe and 

comply with all applicable standards and recommendations of The Joint Commission and 
Accreditation Council for Graduate Medical Education. 

 
2.6.4 Training/Experience.  Each Group Physician shall have (i) recent 

experience as an internal medicine practitioner, (ii) an academic background to include 
teaching and working in an academic medical center, experience working with other 
clinical departments, teaching residents and medical students, participating in hospital 
committees, and working on pathways and evidence-based guidelines, and (iii) ongoing 
acute care hospital experience. 
 
2.7 Rights and Duties.  Katayoun Sabetian, M.D., shall act as the authorized agent for 

Contractor in all matters relating to the performance of Group Physicians under this Agreement.  
Contractor shall require Group Physicians to participate in the educational and committee 
activities of the KMC medical staff.  Contractor shall, by contract, obligate Group Physicians to 
comply fully with all duties, obligations and restrictions imposed upon Contractor under this 
Agreement. 

 
2.8 Loss or Limitation.  Contractor shall notify KMC promptly of any loss, sanction, 

suspension or material limitations of any Group Physician’s license to practice in the state of 
California, Controlled Substance Registration Certificate issued by the Drug Enforcement 
Administration, right to participate in the Medicare or Medicaid programs, or specialty 
qualifications for medical staff membership or clinical privileges. 

 
2.9 Standards of Medical Practice.  The standards of medical practice and 

professional duties of all Group Physicians providing services under this Agreement shall be in 
accordance with the KMC medical staff bylaws, rules, regulations, and policies, the standards for 
practice established by the state Department of Public Health and all other state and federal laws 
and regulations relating to the licensure and practice of physicians, and The Joint Commission. 
 

2.10 Medical Record Documentation.  Contractor shall cause a complete medical 
record to be timely prepared and maintained for each patient seen by a Group Physician 
providing services under this Agreement.  This record shall be prepared in compliance with all 
state and federal regulations, standards of The Joint Commission, and the KMC medical staff 
bylaws, rules, regulations, and policies.  Documentation by Group Physicians will conform to the 
requirements for evaluation and management (E/M) services billed by teaching physicians set 
forth in the Medicare Carriers Manual, Part 3, sections 15016–15018, inclusive. 

 
 2.11 Quality Improvement and Risk Management.  Contractor agrees that all Group 
Physicians shall participate in (i) the quality improvement and risk management programs of 
KMC and serve on such committees as may be required; (ii) ongoing quality improvement 



4 
 

activities, such as audits, which will be conducted annually in the Department in order to 
evaluate and enhance the quality of patient care; and (iii) risk management activities designed to 
identify, evaluate and reduce the risk of patient injury associated with care.  At a minimum, 
Contractor shall ensure that the quality improvement program consists of the following 
integrated components:  (i) professional development that provides continuous performance 
feedback that is benchmarked, evaluated, and rated individually and collectively; (ii) clinical 
standards that are evidence-based and grounded in industry best practices; (iii) performance 
improvement that is outcomes-focused and based on quality indicators/metrics with quarterly 
reporting of same; and (iv) customer satisfaction that is feedback/survey-driven and objectively 
and comparatively measured, tracked/trended, and analyzed.  The appropriate review mechanism 
will be applied in accordance with the provisions of the KMC medical staff bylaws, The Joint 
Commission, and applicable law. 
 

2.12 Taxes.  Contractor agrees to file federal and state tax returns and pay all 
applicable taxes on amounts paid pursuant to this Agreement and shall be solely liable and 
responsible to pay such taxes and other obligations, including, but not limited to, state and 
federal income and FICA taxes.  Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold Authority harmless 
from any liability which it may incur to the United States or to the state of California as a 
consequence of Contractor’s failure to pay, when due, all such taxes and obligations.  In case 
Authority is audited for compliance regarding any withholding or other applicable taxes, 
Contractor agrees to furnish Authority with proof of payment of taxes on these earnings. 
 

2.13 Nonexclusive Services.  Contractor understands and agrees that Authority will 
utilize the services of Contractor pursuant to the terms of this Agreement on a non-exclusive 
basis.  Contractor further agrees that Authority shall retain the option to enter into agreements 
with other organizations for purposes of securing the services, in its sole discretion. 
 
3. Obligations of Authority.  
  

3.1 Authority Designee.  Authority shall designate a primary contact, who will 
arrange for KMC staff assistance as may be required.   

 
3.2 Space.  KMC shall furnish for the use of Contractor such space and facilities as 

may be deemed necessary by KMC for the proper operation and conduct of the Department.  
KMC shall, in its sole discretion, determine the amount and type of space and facilities to be 
provided herein.  Contractor shall use the space and equipment solely for the performance of the 
services required under this Agreement.  Neither Contractor nor Group Physicians shall use such 
space or equipment for other business or personal use. 
  

3.3 Use Limitations on Space.  The use of any part of the space occupied by the 
Department for the general or private practice of medicine is prohibited.  Contractor shall use the 
items furnished under this Agreement only for the performance of services required by this 
Agreement.  This Agreement shall not be construed to be a lease to Contractor or any Group 
Physician of any portion of the Premises, and insofar as Contractor or Group Physicians may use 
a portion of said Premises, Contractor and Group Physicians do so as licensees only, and 
Authority and KMC shall, at all times, have full and free access to the same. 



5 
 

3.4 Equipment.  KMC shall furnish for the use of the Department such equipment as 
is deemed necessary by KMC for the proper operation and conduct of the Department consistent 
with community standards.  KMC shall keep and maintain this equipment in good order and 
repair and replace such equipment, as is reasonably necessary and subject to the usual purchasing 
practices of Authority and KMC and budget constraints.    
 
 3.5 Services and Supplies.  KMC shall provide or arrange for the provision of 
janitorial services, housekeeping services, laundry and utilities, together with such other hospital 
services, including medical records, administrative and engineering services, and expendable 
supplies as KMC deems necessary for the proper operation and conduct of the Department. 

 
 3.6 Control Retained in KMC.  In compliance with title 22, California Code of 
Regulations, section 70713 KMC will retain professional and administrative responsibility for 
services rendered under this Agreement.  Contractor shall apprise KMC of recommendations, 
plans for implementation and continuing assessment through dated and signed reports which 
shall be retained by KMC for follow-up action and evaluation of performance. 

 
4. Payment for Services.   
 

4.1  Compensation.  As consideration for the services provided by Contractor 
hereunder, Authority shall pay Contractor according to the fee schedule set forth in this 
paragraph 4.1.  All services are payable in arrears.  
 

4.1.1 Medical Director Services.  Contractor shall be paid an hourly rate of $150 
per hour not to exceed 40 hours per month for services as Medical Director of the stroke 
program.  

 
4.1.2 Neurology Coverage.  Contractor shall be compensated as follows: (i) 

Contractor shall be paid a fixed fee of $500 for each neurology clinic attended; (ii) 
Contractor shall be paid a per diem rate of $350 per day for neurology rounds and 
consultations; (iii) Contractor shall be paid a per diem rate of $75 for weekday night call 
coverage (Monday through Thursday, 5:00 p.m. to 8:00 a.m.); (iv) Contractor shall be 
paid a fixed fee of $300 for weekend call coverage (Friday, 5:00 p.m. to Monday, 8:00 
a.m.); and (v) Contractor shall be paid prevailing Medi-Cal rates for each adult EEG, 
nerve conduction study and EMG interpreted by Contractor.   

 
4.1.3 Didactic Lectures.  Contractor shall be paid a fixed fee of $300 per lecture, 

which includes preparation time and lecture presentation.   
 
4.2 Limitations on Compensation.  Except as expressly stated herein, neither 

Contractor nor Group Physicians shall receive any benefits from Authority, including without 
limitation, health benefits, sick leave, vacation, holidays, deferred compensation or retirement.  

 
4.3 Invoices.  Invoices for payment shall be submitted in a form approved by KMC 

and list each service performed.  Invoices and receipts shall be sent to KMC for review and 



6 
 

processing within 60 days of the date of service or payment will not be made.  Payment shall be 
made to Contractor within 30 days of receipt and approval of each invoice by KMC.   
 

4.5 Maximum Payable.  The maximum payable under this Agreement shall not 
exceed $610,000 over the two-year term of this Agreement.  
 

4.6 Taxpayer Identification.  To ensure compensation is reported as paid to the proper 
party, Contractor will complete and execute IRS Form W-9 (Exhibit “B,” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference), which identifies the taxpayer identification number for 
Contractor. 
 

4.7 Professional Fee Billing.  Contractor shall have the exclusive right to bill, collect 
and retain all professional fees for all direct patient care services provided by Contractor under 
this Agreement, with the exception of “County Responsible” patients.  “County Responsible” 
patients are defined as medically indigent adults pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code 
sections 17000 et seq., and adult inmates and juvenile detainees in custody in detention facilities 
owned and operated by the County of Kern. 

 
4.7 Managed Care Contracting.  Contractor shall cooperate, and shall ensure that 

Group Physicians cooperate, in all reasonable respects necessary to facilitate KMC’s entry into 
or maintenance of any third-party payer arrangements for the provision of services under any 
other public or private health and/or hospital care programs, including but not limited to 
insurance programs, self-funded employer health programs, health care service plans and 
preferred provider organizations.  To enable Authority or KMC to participate in any third-party 
payer arrangements, Contractor and/or Group Physicians shall, upon request: (i) enroll as a 
provider (if required by the third-party payer), separate from Authority and KMC, with any third-
party payer or intermediate organization (including any independent practice association) (each, 
a “Managed Care Organization”) designated by Authority or KMC for the provision of 
professional services to patients covered by such Managed Care Organization; (ii) enter into a 
written agreement with such Managed Care Organization as may be necessary or appropriate for 
the provision of professional services to patients covered by such Managed Care Organization; 
and/or (iii) enter into a written agreement with KMC regarding global billing, capitation or other 
payment arrangements as may be necessary or appropriate for the provision of professional 
services to patients covered by such Managed Care Organization. 

 
5. Access to Books and Records.  Contractor shall make available, upon written request 
from Authority or KMC, the Secretary of Health and Human Services, the Comptroller General 
of the United States, or any other duly authorized agent or representative, this Agreement, and 
Contractor’s books, documents and records.  Contractor shall preserve and make available such 
books, documents and records for a period of seven (7) years after the termination or expiration 
of this Agreement.  If Contractor is requested to disclose books, documents or records pursuant 
to this section for any purpose, Contractor shall notify KMC of the nature and scope of the 
request, and Contractor shall make available, upon written request of KMC, all such books, 
documents or records.   
 



7 
 

6. Anti-referral Laws.  Contractor acknowledges that it is subject to certain federal and 
state laws governing the referral of patients, which are in effect during the term of this 
Agreement.  These laws include (i) prohibitions on payments for referral or to induce the referral 
of patients, and (ii) the referral of patients by a physician for certain designated health care 
services to an entity with which the physician (or his or her immediate family) has a financial 
relationship (Cal. Business and Professions Code sections 650 et seq.; Cal. Labor Code sections 
139.3 and 139.31; section 1128B (b) of the Social Security Act; and section 1877 of the Social 
Security Act).  The parties expressly agree that nothing contained in this Agreement shall require 
either the referral of any patients to, or order of any goods or services from Contractor or KMC.  
Notwithstanding any unanticipated effect of any provision of this Agreement, neither party shall 
knowingly or intentionally conduct itself in such a manner as to violate the prohibition against 
fraud and abuse in connection with the Medicare and Medicaid programs (42 U.S.C. section 
1320a-7b). 
 
7. Assignment.  Contractor shall not assign, delegate, sublet, or transfer any interest in or 
duty under this Agreement.  Contractor shall not assign any money due or which becomes due to 
Contractor under this Agreement without the prior written approval of Authority. 
 
8.  Audits, Inspection and Retention of Records.  Contractor agrees to maintain and make 
available to Authority accurate books and records relative to all its activities under this 
Agreement.  Contractor shall permit Authority to audit, examine and make excerpts and 
transcripts from such records, and to conduct audits or reviews of all invoices, materials, records 
or personnel or other data related to all other matters covered by this Agreement.  Contractor 
shall maintain such data and records in an accessible location and condition for a period of not 
less than four (4) years from the date of final payment under this Agreement, or until after the 
conclusion of any audit, whichever occurs last.  The state of California or any federal agency 
having an interest in the subject of this Agreement shall have the same rights conferred upon 
Authority herein. 
 
9. Authority to Incur Financial Obligation.  It is understood that neither Contractor nor 
Group Physicians, in the performance of any and all duties under this Agreement, has no right, 
power or authority to bind Authority to any agreements or undertakings. 
 
10. Captions.  The captions in this Agreement are solely for convenience of reference. They 
are not a part of this Agreement and shall have no effect on its construction or interpretation.  
 
11. Change in Law.  In the event that a change in state or federal law or regulatory 
requirement (or the application thereof), any of which renders this Agreement illegal, impossible 
to perform, or commercially impracticable, the parties agree to negotiate immediately, in good 
faith, any necessary or appropriate amendments(s) to the terms of this Agreement.  If the parties 
fail to reach a mutually agreeable amendment within 30 days of such negotiation period, this 
Agreement shall automatically terminate at the end of such 30-day period. 
 
12. Choice of Law/Venue.  The parties hereto agree that the provisions of this Agreement 
will be construed pursuant to the laws of the state of California.  It is expressly acknowledged 
that this Agreement has been entered into and will be performed within the County of Kern.  



8 
 

Should any suit or action be commenced to enforce or interpret the terms of this Agreement or 
any claim arising under it, it is expressly agreed that proper venue shall be in County of Kern, 
state of California.   
 
13. Compliance with Law.  Contractor shall observe and comply with all applicable 
Authority, local, state and federal laws, ordinances, rules and regulations now in effect or 
hereafter enacted, each of which is hereby made a part hereof and incorporated herein by 
reference. 
 
14. Compliance Program.  Contractor acknowledges that KMC has implemented a 
compliance program for the purpose of ensuring adherence to applicable federal and state laws, 
regulations and other standards.  Contractor agrees that in the course of performance of its duties 
described herein that it shall act, and cause its employees to act, in conformance with the policies 
set forth therein.  KMC shall make available such information relating to its compliance program 
as is appropriate to assist Contractor in adhering to the policies set forth in the compliance 
program.  Contractor and its employees shall participate in compliance training and education as 
reasonably requested by KMC.   
 
15. Confidentiality. 
 

15.1 Use and Disclosure Restrictions.  Neither party shall, without the written consent 
of the other, communicate confidential information of the other, designated in writing or 
identified in this Agreement as such, to any third party and shall protect such information from 
inadvertent disclosure to any third party in the same manner that the receiving party would 
protect its own confidential information.  The foregoing obligations will not restrict either party 
from disclosing confidential information of the other party: (i) pursuant to applicable law; (ii) 
pursuant to the order or requirement of a court, administrative agency, or other governmental 
body, on condition that the party required to make such a disclosure gives reasonable written 
notice to the other party to contest such order or requirement; and (iii) on a confidential basis to 
its legal or financial advisors.   

 
15.2 Trade Secrets.  The parties acknowledges that each party, in connection with its 

business, has developed certain operating manuals, symbols, trademarks, trade names, service 
marks, designs, patient lists, procedures, processes, and other copyrighted, patented, 
trademarked, or legally protectable information which is confidential and proprietary to the party 
that constitute its trade secrets.  The parties shall not use any name, symbol, mark, or other 
proprietary information of the other party except as expressly permitted. 

 
15.3 Medical Records.  The parties agree to maintain the confidentiality of all medical 

records pertaining to the provision of services under this Agreement in accordance with 
applicable federal and state laws and regulations including, but not limited to, the California 
Confidentiality of Medical Records Information Act, codified at section 56.1 of the California 
Civil Code, California Evidence Code sections 1156 and 1157, and the Health Insurance 
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and its implementing regulations.   
 
  



9 
 

 15.4 Medical Staff and Committee Records.  All records, files, proceedings and related 
information of Group Physicians, KMC and the medical staff and it committees pertaining to the 
evaluation and improvements of the quality of patient care at KMC shall be kept strictly 
confidential by Contractor and Group Physicians.  Neither Contractor nor Group Physicians shall 
voluntarily disclose such confidential information, either orally or in writing, except as expressly 
required by law or pursuant to written authorization by KMC, which may be given or withheld in 
the sole discretion of KMC. 
 

15.5 Ownership of Records.  All documents, papers, notes, memoranda, computer files 
and other written or electronic records of any kind (“Documents”), in whatever form or format, 
assembled, prepared or utilized by Contractor or Group Physicians during and in connection with 
this Agreement shall remain the property of Authority at all times.  Upon the expiration or 
termination of this Agreement, Contractor shall promptly deliver to Authority all such 
Documents, which have not already been provided to Authority in such form or format as 
Authority deems appropriate.  Such Documents shall be and will remain the property of 
Authority without restriction or limitation.  Contractor may retain copies of the above described 
Documents but agrees not to disclose or discuss any information gathered, discovered, or 
generated in any way through this Agreement without the express written permission of 
Authority. 
 
 15.6 Non-disparagement.  Each party agrees that it shall not make or cause to be made, 
any written (including, but not limited to, any emails, internet postings, remarks or statements) or 
verbal assertions, statements or other communications regarding the other party’s business or 
each other which may be in any manner whatsoever defamatory, detrimental or unfavorable to 
such other party.  Each party agrees that these non-disparagement covenants shall survive the 
termination of this Agreement. 
 
16. Conflict of Interest.   Contractor covenants that it has no interest and that it will not 
acquire any interest, direct or indirect, that represents a financial conflict of interest under state 
law or that would otherwise conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of its services 
hereunder.  Contractor further covenants that in the performance of this Agreement no person 
having any such interests shall be employed.  It is understood and agreed that if such a financial 
interest does exist at the inception of this Agreement, Authority may immediately terminate this 
Agreement by giving written notice thereof.   
 
17. Consent.  Wherever in this Agreement the consent or approval of one party is required to 
an act of the other party, such consent or approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. 
 
18. Construction.  To the fullest extent allowed by law, the provisions of this Agreement 
shall be construed and given effect in a manner that avoids any violation of statute, ordinance, 
regulation, or law.  The parties covenant and agree that in the event that any provision of this 
Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the 
remainder of the provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be 
affected, impaired, or invalidated thereby.  Contractor and Authority acknowledge that they have 
each contributed to the making of this Agreement and that, in the event of a dispute over the 
interpretation of this Agreement, the language of the Agreement will not be construed against 



10 
 

one party in favor of the other.  Contractor and Authority acknowledge that they have each had 
an adequate opportunity to consult with counsel in the negotiation and preparation of this 
Agreement.  
 
19. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in any number of 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute 
one and the same instrument. 
 
20. Disqualified Persons.   The parties mutually represent and warrant to one another that 
they and their respective representatives are not: (i) currently excluded, debarred, or otherwise 
ineligible to participate in the federal health care programs as defined in 42 U.S.C. section 
1320a-7b-(f) (the “Federal health care programs”) and/or present on the exclusion database of 
the Office of the Inspector General (“OIG”) or the Government Services Administration 
(“GSA”); (ii) convicted of a criminal offense related to the provision of health care items or 
services but have not yet been excluded, debarred, or otherwise declared ineligible to participate 
in the Federal health care programs; or (iii) debarred, suspended, excluded or disqualified by any 
federal governmental agency or department or otherwise declared ineligible from receiving 
federal contracts or federally approved subcontracts or from receiving federal financial and 
nonfinancial assistance and benefits.  This shall be an ongoing representation and warranty 
during the term of this Agreement and a party shall immediately notify the other party of any 
change in the status of any of the representations and/or warranties set forth in this section.  Any 
breach of this section shall give the non-breaching party the right to terminate this Agreement 
immediately upon written notice. 
 
21. Enforcement of Remedies.  No right or remedy herein conferred on or reserved to 
Authority is exclusive of any other right or remedy herein or by law or equity provided or 
permitted, but each shall be cumulative of every other right or remedy given hereunder or now or 
hereafter existing by law or in equity or by statute or otherwise, and may be enforced 
concurrently or from time to time. 
 
22. Immigration Compliance.  Contractor shall comply with all provisions of immigration 
law with respect to hiring, recruiting or referring for employment persons whose authorization 
for employment in the United States has been verified, and shall provide KMC with a copy of 
such verification required in 8 USCA section 1324a.  Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend, 
and hold harmless Authority, its agents, officers, and employees, from any liability, damages, or 
causes of action arising out of Contractor’s failure to comply with this section 22. 
 
23. Indemnification and Hold Harmless.  Authority shall assume liability for and 
indemnify and hold Contractor and Group Physicians harmless from any and all claims, losses, 
expenses, costs, actions, settlements, attorneys’ fees and judgments incurred by Contractor or 
Group Physicians or for which Contractor or Group Physicians becomes liable, arising out of or 
related to professional services rendered or which a third party alleges should have been rendered 
by Contractor or Group Physicians pursuant to this Agreement.  Authority’s obligation under this 
paragraph shall extend from the Effective Date and shall survive termination or expiration of this 
Agreement to include all claims that allegedly arise out of professional services Contractor or 
Group Physicians rendered on behalf of Authority; provided, however, that the provisions of this 
paragraph shall not apply to any services rendered at any location other than KMC without 



11 
 

approval by the Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors and, provided further, that 
Authority shall have no duty or obligation to defend, indemnify or hold Contractor or Group 
Physicians harmless for any conduct or misconduct found to be intentional, willful, grossly 
negligent, or criminal. 
 
24. Independent Contractor.  In the performance of the services under this Agreement, 
Contractor shall be, and acknowledges that Contractor is in fact and law, an independent 
contractor and not an agent or employee of Authority.  Contractor has and retains the right to 
exercise full supervision and control over the manner and methods of providing services to 
Authority under this Agreement.  Contractor retains full supervision and control over the 
employment, direction, compensation and discharge of all persons assisting Contractor in the 
provision of services under this Agreement.  With respect to Contractor’s employees, if any, 
Contractor shall be solely responsible for payment of wages, benefits and other compensation, 
compliance with all occupational safety, welfare and civil rights laws, tax withholding and 
payment of employment taxes whether federal, state or local, and compliance with any and all 
other laws regulating employment. 
 
25. Informal Dispute Resolution.  Controversies between the parties with respect to this 
Agreement, or the rights of either party, or with respect to any transaction contemplated by this 
Agreement, shall be resolved, to the extent possible, by informal meetings and discussions 
among appropriate representatives of the parties. 
 
26. Insurance.  With respect to performance of work under this Agreement, Contractor shall 
maintain and shall require all of its subcontractors, consultants, and other agents to maintain, 
insurance as described in Exhibit “C,” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

 
27. Modifications of Agreement.  This Agreement may be modified in writing only, signed 
by the parties in interest at the time of the modification. 
 
28. No Third Party Beneficiaries.  It is expressly understood and agreed that the 
enforcement of this Agreement and all rights of action relating to such enforcement, shall be 
strictly reserved to Authority and Contractor.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall give or 
allow any claim or right of action whatsoever by any other third person.  It is the express 
intention of Authority and Contractor that any such person or entity, other than Authority or 
Contractor, receiving services or benefits under this Agreement shall be deemed an incidental 
beneficiary only. 
 
29. Non-appropriation.  Authority reserves the right to terminate this Agreement in the 
event insufficient funds are appropriated or budgeted for this Agreement in any fiscal year.  
Upon such termination, Authority will be released from any further financial obligation to 
Contractor, except for services performed prior to the date of termination or any liability due to 
any default existing at the time this clause is exercised.  Contractor will be given 30 days’ prior 
written notice in the event that Authority requires such an action. 
 
30. Non-collusion Covenant.  Contractor represents and agrees that it has in no way entered 
into any contingent fee arrangement with any firm or person concerning the obtaining of this 



12 
 

Agreement with Authority.  Contractor has received from Authority no incentive or special 
payments, nor considerations, not related to the provision of services under this Agreement. 
 
31. Nondiscrimination.  Neither Contractor, nor any officer, agent, employee, servant or 
subcontractor of Contractor shall discriminate in the treatment or employment of any individual 
or groups of individuals on the grounds of race, color, ancestry, national origin, religion, sex, 
actual or perceived sexual orientation, marital status, age, pregnancy, medical condition, 
handicap or other prohibited basis, either directly, indirectly or through contractual or other 
arrangements. 
 
32. Non-waiver.  No covenant or condition of this Agreement can be waived except by the 
written consent of Authority.  Forbearance or indulgence by Authority in any regard whatsoever 
shall not constitute a waiver of the covenant or condition to be performed by Contractor.  
Authority shall be entitled to invoke any remedy available to Authority under this Agreement or 
by law or in equity despite said forbearance or indulgence. 
 
33. Notices.  Notices to be given by one party to the other under this Agreement shall be 
given in writing by personal delivery, by certified mail, return receipt requested, or express 
delivery service at the addresses specified below.  Notices delivered personally shall be deemed 
received upon receipt; mailed or expressed notices shall be deemed received four (4) days after 
deposit.  A party may change the address to which notice is to be given by giving notice as 
provided above. 
 

Notice to Contractor: Notice to Authority: 
  

Katayoun Sabetian, M.D., Inc. Kern Medical Center 
2323 16th Street, Suite 206 1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 

Bakersfield, California 93301 Bakersfield, California 93306 
Attn.: Its President Attn.: Chief Executive Officer 

 
34. Signature Authority.  Each party represents that they have full power and authority to 
enter into and perform this Agreement, and the person(s) signing this Agreement on behalf of 
each party has been properly authorized and empowered to enter into this Agreement. 
 
35. Sole Agreement.  This Agreement, including all attachments hereto, contains the entire 
agreement between the parties relating to the services, rights, obligations and covenants 
contained herein and assumed by the parties respectively.  No inducements, representations or 
promises have been made, other than those recited in this Agreement.  No oral promise, 
modification, change or inducement shall be effective or given any force or effect. 
 
36. Termination.   
 

36.1 Termination with Cause.  Either party may terminate this Agreement in the event 
of a material breach by the other; provided, however, the termination for the breach of this 
Agreement will not become effective unless and until the party not in default, has given the other 
party written notice of breach, which notice shall state the general nature of the breach, and the 



13 
 

party allegedly in default will thereafter have a period of 30 days following the giving of said 
notice in which to remedy the default to the reasonable satisfaction of the other party.  If the 
alleged default is of the kind that cannot be cured within 30 days, then the party allegedly in 
default will have an additional 30 days in which to remedy the breach as long as such party is 
acting in good faith and using diligent efforts to remedy such breach throughout the cure period. 

 
36.2 Termination without Cause.  Either party may terminate this Agreement, without 

cause, upon 90 days’ prior written notice to the other party.   
 
36.3 Immediate Termination.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Authority shall have the 

right to terminate this Agreement effective immediately after giving written notice to Contractor, 
for any of the following reasons: (i) Authority determines that Contractor does not have the 
proper credentials, experience or skill to perform the required services under this Agreement; (ii) 
continuation by Contractor in the providing of services may result in civil, criminal, or monetary 
penalties against Authority or KMC; (iii) the violation of any federal or state law or regulatory 
rule or regulation or condition of accreditation or certification to which Authority or KMC is 
subject; (iv) an unauthorized use or disclosure of confidential or proprietary information by 
Contractor which causes material harm to Authority or KMC; (v) commission of a material act 
involving moral turpitude, fraud, dishonesty, embezzlement, misappropriation or financial 
dishonesty by Contractor against Authority or KMC; (vi) the loss or threatened loss of KMC’s 
ability to participate in any federal or state health care program, including Medicare or Medi-Cal, 
due to the actions of Contractor; or (vii) the failure of Contractor to cure a default within the time 
allowed in paragraph 36.1. 

 
37. Effect of Termination.   
 

37.1 Payment Obligations.  In the event of termination of this Agreement for any 
reason, Authority shall have no further obligation to pay for any services rendered or expenses 
incurred by Contractor after the effective date of the termination, and Contractor shall be entitled 
to receive compensation for services satisfactorily rendered, calculated on a prorated basis up to 
the effective date of termination.   
 
 37.2 Vacate Premises.  Upon expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement, 
Contractor shall immediately vacate KMC, removing at such time any and all personal property 
of Contractor.  Authority may remove and store, at Contractor’s expense, any personal property 
that Contractor has not so removed. 
  
 37.3 No Interference.  Following the expiration or earlier termination of this 
Agreement, Contractor shall not do anything or cause any person to do anything that might 
interfere with any efforts by Authority to contract with any other individual or entity for the 
provision of services or to interfere in any way with any relationship between Authority and any 
provider that may replace Contractor. 
 
 37.4 No Hearing Rights.  Termination of this Agreement by Authority or KMC for any 
reason shall not provide Contractor or Group Physicians the right to a fair hearing or the other 
rights more particularly set forth in the KMC medical staff bylaws. 



14 
 

38. Time of Essence.  Time is hereby expressly declared to be of the essence of this 
Agreement and of each and every provision hereof, and each such provision is hereby made and 
declared to be a material, necessary and essential part of this Agreement. 
 
39. Liability of Authority.  The liabilities or obligations of Authority with respect to its 
activities pursuant to this Agreement shall be the liabilities or obligations solely of Authority and 
shall not be or become the liabilities or obligations of the County of Kern or any other entity, 
including the state of California. 
 

[Signatures follow on next page] 
 



15 
 

IN WITNESS TO THE FOREGOING, the parties have executed this Agreement as of 
the day and year first written above. 
 
KATAYOUN SABETIAN, M.D., INC. 
 
 
By_______________________ 
    Katayoun Sabetian, M.D. 
    Its President 
 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
 
 
By_______________________ 
    Russell V. Judd 
    Chief Executive Officer 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
LEGAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
 
 
By_______________________ 
    VP & General Counsel 
    Kern County Hospital Authority 
 
 
 
Agreement.Sabetian.081618 
 

      
 
 
          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 



16 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
Description of Services 

Katayoun Sabetian, M.D., Inc. 
 
Position Summary: 
 

1. Reports to Department chair. 
2. Serves as Medical Director of the stroke program. 
3. Serves as a provider of neurology services.  

 
Clinical Responsibilities: 
      

1. Provide neurology clinic coverage, rounds and consultations (excluding two Thursdays 
per month when Contractor is available for phone consultations only). 

2. Provide interpretation of adult electroencephalograms, nerve conduction studies and 
electromyelograms. 

3. Provide supervision of residents, medical students and mid-level practitioners. 
4. Provide electronic or telephonic consultation on an as-needed basis for problem cases. 

 
Teaching Responsibilities: 
 

1. Provide bedside teaching of residents and medical students. 
2. Provide didactic lectures three times per year, one hour each lecture, on clinic day. 

 
Medical Director Responsibilities: 

 
1. Work collaboratively with the stroke program Coordinator and other medical and clinical 

staff to develop, obtain, and maintain disease-specific accreditation as a primary stroke 
center through The Joint Commission. 

2. Provide leadership and clinical oversight of the stroke program. 
3. Provide leadership and support for the education and training of the medical and clinical 

staff involved in stroke care. 
4. Provide leadership and support in the development of written care protocols and obtain 

approval of such protocols through appropriate KMC medical staff committees. 
5. Provide oversight to coordinate performance improvement activities. 
6. Lead and participate in multidisciplinary stroke committee meetings. 
7. Participate in and support KMC academic programs that relate to stroke program 

teaching and research. 
8. Participate in a leadership role at KMC and in the community.   
9. Work to ensure excellent care through chart review, direct observation, and data analysis.   

[Intentionally left blank] 
 
  



17 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 

IRS FORM W-9 
  



18 
 

EXHIBIT “C” 
INSURANCE 

 
With respect to performance of work under this Agreement, Contractor shall maintain and shall 
require all of its subcontractors, consultants, and other agents to maintain insurance as described 
below unless such insurance has been expressly waived in writing by Authority.  Any 
requirement for insurance to be maintained after completion of the work shall survive the 
termination or expiration of this Agreement.   
 
Authority reserves the right to review any and all of the required insurance policies and/or 
endorsements, but has no obligation to do so.  Failure to demand evidence of full compliance 
with the insurance requirements set forth in this Agreement or failure to identify any insurance 
deficiency shall not relieve Contractor from, nor be construed or deemed a waiver of, its 
obligation to maintain the required insurance at all times during the performance of this 
Agreement. 
 
 1. Workers’ Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance:  

 
(a) Required if Contractor has employees.  If Contractor currently has no employees, 

Contractor’s written confirmation of such will be required before execution of this 
Agreement.  If Contractor engages any employees during the term of this 
Agreement or any extensions thereof, Contractor agrees to obtain the specified 
Workers’ Compensation and Employers Liability insurance.   

(b) Workers’ Compensation insurance with statutory limits as required by the California 
Labor Code.   

(c) Employers Liability with limits of $1,000,000 per Accident; $1,000,000 Disease per 
employee; $1,000,000 Disease per policy.   

(d) Waiver of Subrogation: The Workers’ Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a 
waiver of subrogation in favor of Authority for all work performed by Contractor, its 
employees, agents and subcontractors. 

(e) Required Evidence of Insurance: Certificate of Insurance. 
 

2. General Liability Insurance: 
 
(a) Commercial General Liability Insurance on a standard occurrence form, no less 

broad than Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CG 00 01. 
(b) Minimum Limits:  $1,000,000 per Occurrence; $2,000,000 General Aggregate; 

$2,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate.  The required limits may be 
provided by a combination of General Liability Insurance and Commercial 
Umbrella Liability Insurance.  If Contractor maintains higher limits than the 
specified minimum limits, Authority requires and shall be entitled to coverage for 
the higher limits maintained by Contractor. 

(c) If Contractor has no Owned automobiles, the General Liability policy shall include 
Non-Owned and Hired Automobile Liability in the amount of $1,000,000 combined 
single limit per accident. 
 



19 
 

(d) Any deductible or self-insured retention shall be shown on the Certificate of 
Insurance.  If the deductible or self-insured retention exceeds $25,000 it must be 
approved in advance by Authority.  Contractor is responsible for any deductible or 
self-insured retention and shall fund it upon Authority’s written request, regardless 
of whether Contractor has a claim against the insurance or is named as a party in 
any action involving Authority. 

(e) Authority shall be named as an additional insured for liability arising out of 
operations by or on behalf of Contractor in the performance of this Agreement.  See 
section 5 below for full Additional Insured wording. 

(f) The insurance provided to Authority as an additional insured shall be primary to 
and non-contributory with any insurance or self-insurance program maintained by 
Authority. 

(g) The policy definition of “insured contract” shall include assumptions of liability 
arising out of both ongoing operations and the products-completed operations 
hazard (broad form contractual liability coverage including the “f” definition of 
insured contract in ISO form CG 00 01, or equivalent).  

(h) The policy shall cover inter-insured suits between Authority and Contractor and 
include a “separation of insureds” or “severability” clause which treats each insured 
separately.  

(i) Required Evidence of Insurance: (i) Copy of the additional insured endorsement or 
policy language granting additional insured status; and (ii) Certificate of Insurance. 

 
3. Automobile Liability Insurance: 

 
(a) Minimum Limits: $1,000,000 combined single limit per accident for bodily injury 

and property damage. 
(b) Insurance shall apply to all Owned autos.  If Contractor currently owns no autos, 

Contractor agrees to obtain such insurance should any autos be acquired during the 
term of this Agreement or any extensions thereof. 

(c) Insurance shall include coverage for Non-Owned and Hired autos.  (See 
requirements in section 1(c) above if there is no separate Automobile Liability 
coverage.) 

(d) Authority shall be named as an additional insured for liability arising out of 
operations by or on behalf of Contractor in the performance of this Agreement.  See 
section 5 for full Additional Insured wording.  

(e) Required Evidence of Insurance: Certificate of Insurance. 
 

4. Standards for Insurance Companies: Insurers shall have an A.M. Best’s rating of at least 
A;VII. 
 

5. Additional Insured Wording: “Kern County Hospital Authority, its officers, officials, 
employees and volunteers” are to be named as Additional Insureds as per each section 
where noted above.   
 

6. Claims Made Policies: If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made 
basis: 



20 
 

(a) The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the Effective Date of the 
Agreement or the beginning of contract work. 

(b) Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at 
least five (5) years after completion of the contract work. 

(c) If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made 
policy form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, Contractor 
must purchase “extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after 
completion of the contract work. 
 

7. Documentation: 
 
(a) The Certificate of Insurance must include the following reference: “Agreement for 

Professional Services.”  
(b) All required Evidence of Insurance shall be submitted prior to the execution of this 

Agreement.  Contractor agrees to maintain current Evidence of Insurance on file 
with Authority for the entire term of this Agreement and any additional periods if 
specified in sections 1, 2 or 3 above. 

(c) The name and address for the Certificates of Insurance and Additional Insured 
endorsements is: Kern County Hospital Authority, c/o Kern Medical Center, 1700 
Mount Vernon Avenue, Bakersfield, California 93306.                                                                     

(d) Required Evidence of Insurance shall be submitted for any renewal or replacement 
of a policy that already exists, at least 10 days before expiration or other termination 
of the existing policy. 

(e) Contractor shall provide immediate written notice if: (i) any of the required 
insurance policies is terminated; (ii) the limits of any of the required policies are 
reduced; or (iii) the deductible or self-insured retention is increased.   

(f) Upon written request, certified copies of required insurance policies must be 
provided to Authority within 30 days. 
 

8. Policy Obligations: Contractor’s indemnity and other obligations shall not be limited by 
the foregoing insurance requirements. 

 
9. Material Breach: If Contractor fails to maintain the insurance required by this Agreement, 

it shall be deemed a material breach of this Agreement.  Authority, at its sole option, may 
terminate this Agreement and obtain damages from Contractor resulting from said breach.  
Alternatively, Authority may purchase the required insurance, and without further notice 
to Contractor, Authority may deduct from sums due to Contractor any premium costs 
advanced by Authority for such insurance.  These remedies shall be in addition to any 
other remedies available to Authority. 
 

 
[Intentionally left blank] 

 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
September 19, 2018 
 
Subject:  Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 2016‐051 with Mission Linen Supply, 
an independent contractor, for linen supply items 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary:   
 
Kern Medical requests the Board approve amendment #1 with Mission Linen Supply for the provision of patient 
linen, scrubs, uniforms, lab coats, and mats, for Kern Medical and outlying clinics.  Amendment 1 extends the 
term 2 years and increases the not‐to‐exceed total by $2,500,000. The total not‐to‐exceed amount for the 4‐
year agreement is $4,380,000. 
 

















 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

  
September 19, 2018 
  
Subject:  Proposed Memorandum of Understanding with Service Employees International Union, Local 
521, for bargaining units 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6, effective September 19, 2018 through October 31, 2020, 
with changes to wages, hours, and terms and conditions of employment 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign; Authorize Chief Executive Officer, Chief 
Financial Officer and Human Resources to implement changes 
 
Summary: 
 
The Authority requests your Board approve the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the 
Kern County Hospital Authority and Service Employees International Union, Local 521 (SEIU), 
representing employees in bargaining units 1-6.  The parties began meeting in April 2018 and met 
regularly until the parties reached agreement in September 2018.   
 
The proposed MOU contains changes to wages, time off accruals, overtime rules, and flexing of staff.  
These changes and others have been negotiated in good faith between the Authority and SEIU with the 
parties tentatively agreeing to the proposed language changes. 
 
The following is a brief overview of the major economic/operational changes: 
 
1) Wage increases in the amount of 2.25% or higher will be provided to all represented employees.  

These increases will be effective as of 12/22/18.  In addition, employees will receive a one-time 
MOU signing bonus in the amount of their base hourly rate times 2.0% times 480 hours, which 
represents the 90-day implementation period assuming your Board’s approval of the MOU. 

2) Vacation and sick leave accrual banks will be converted to Paid Time Off (PTO) and Extended Illness 
Bank (EIB), respectively.  The maximum accruals for these banks will be lowered and annual 
employee accruals will increase by 24 hours.   

3) Three of the currently observed holidays will no longer be eligible for premium pay for time worked 
on those days.  These holidays will be converted to additional PTO accruals for employees.  The 
holidays proposed for conversion to PTO are Presidents’ Day, Labor Day and New Year’s Eve. 

4) Overtime will no longer be calculated based on hours paid (which can include sick time, vacation, 
and other paid leave time), but rather hours worked only for represented employees.  In addition, 
with the exception of employees who work eight-hour days, five days a week, employees will only 
be eligible for overtime if they exceed 40 hours in a work week, as opposed to the current practice 
of paying daily overtime. 



 
 
Members, Board of Governors 
September 19, 2018 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

5) All employees will be eligible for “flexing” off, which can occur at times during drops in patient 
census or due to fiscal constraints, or other occasions when staffing must be temporarily adjusted. 

Between September 13 and September 17, 2018, SEIU communicated the terms and conditions of the 
proposed MOU to represented employees, who voted to ratify the agreement.  The results of this vote 
were presented to the Authority on September 18, 2018.     
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the Memorandum of Understanding with 
Service Employees International Union, Local 521, for bargaining units 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6, effective 
September 19, 2018 through October 31, 2020, with changes to wages, hours, and terms and 
conditions of employment, authorize the Chairman to sign, and authorize the Chief Executive Officer, 
Chief Financial Officer and Human Resources to implement the proposed changes. 
 
 
 

 



SEIU MOU – OVERVIEW OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES

Lisa Hockersmith

September 2018



Review of Negotiations Priorities

 Initial package proposal included:
 Wage increases
 Changes to retirement (for new employees)
 Conversion to PTO/EIB
 Changes to overtime calculations

Daily to weekly overtime
Time worked vs. time paid

 Flexing of all staff



Retirement ‐ Not Able to Achieve

 Initial offer was for new employees (hired after June 30, 2018) to 
enroll in a deferred compensation (DC) plan instead of current 
KCERA plan

 SEIU indicated they were not interested in negotiating the 
retirement plan
 Passed legislation changing statute without involving the 

hospital, even while negotiations were on-going

 Kern Medical fought hard to convince SEIU that offering a DC 
plan did not in any way lessen the benefits available to 
employees

 End result was agreement to form a committee to meet and 
discuss alternatives for retirement benefits going forward



Able to Achieve – Wage Increases

 Moved from 5 step to 8 step salary ranges
 Initial 2.25% minimum increase; 3% per year thereafter until 

maxed out at Step 8
 2% signing bonus (Hourly rate x 2% x 480 hours), which 

compensates for the 90-day wait while we update our HR 
system with all changes

 Increases to several special/incentive pays 



Able to Achieve – PTO and EIB

 Conversion of vacation and sick banks to PTO and EIB
 Additional 24 hours of annual accruals, but lower maximum 

accrual 
 Conversion of 3 holidays (Presidents’ Day, Labor Day and 

New Year’s Eve) to PTO 
 Annual option for employees to sell back PTO 
 Anticipated reductions in 1-2 day sick calls – employees must 

use PTO for first 3 days of absence in most cases



Able to Achieve ‐ Overtime

 Change from overtime calculated based on hours paid to 
calculations based on hours worked

 Change from daily overtime to weekly overtime
 Greatest savings is from these changes



Able to Achieve ‐ Flexing

 Currently only nurses and a few other direct patient care 
positions can be flexed

 New language allows all employees to be flexed “during 
periods of low census or on other occasions when staffing 
needs to be adjusted on a temporary basis.”  



Next Steps ‐ Communication Strategy

 Letter out to all impacted ee’s by September 27th

 Will show new salary, bonus amount, new step

 Heavy use of LATELY over next 4-6 weeks 
 Overview of all changes in bite size pieces

 Training Sessions
 Mandatory training for all supervisors 
 HR/SEIU review session; same page; review and modify 

impacted P&Ps 
 Employee Q&A sessions or forums



Terms of MOU and Costing of Changes 

 MOU term to be September 2018 to October 2020

 Agreement from SEIU to meet and confer over retirement during 
term of MOU 

 Cost of initial equity increases and lump sums = $5MM (does not 
include 3% increases in years 2019 and 2020)

 Estimated savings from changes over life of contract = $5.7MM 
(before salary increases)



Summary of Major Economic & Operational Changes

Subject Changes Timing

Wage increases Min 2.25% Jan 2019 as increase to base and/or lump sum; no chg to next 
increment date; move to 8‐step ranges (5% to 3% bumps)

Effective 12/22/18

Special Pay Increases Increases to Charge Pay (RN rate only to $3/hr); Security clearance pay 
($2.00); Preceptor pay ($1.50); Chemo nurse pay ($2.50/hr)

Effective 12/22/18

MOU Signing Bonus 2% of hrly rate x 480 hrs (represents 90 day wait for implementation) Paid out 1/15/19

PTO/EIB Conversion Lower max accruals; 1‐time PTO payout to all over new max; accruals 
increased by 6 days (3 for holidays, 3 for EIB)

Effective 12/22/18

Holidays From 11 to 8 recognized holidays; President’s Day, Labor Day and New Years’ 
Eve no longer eligible for premium pay if worked

Effective 12/22/18

Overtime Compensation 1)  Overtime calculated based on time worked not time paid
2)  Daily overtime for ee’s who work 8 hrs/day x 5 days/wk; all others,   OT 
after 40 in week

Effective 12/22/18

Flexing  All staff eligible for flexing Effective immediately

Shift Differential 1 shift differential schedule – 7pm – 7:30am; 10% for nurses & night 
pharmacists, night CLSs; 7.5% all others; must work min. of 2 hrs; only paid for 
hrs worked w/in designated time

Effective 12/22/18

Meal Periods Creation of waiver form that must be approved each pay period for EEs who 
skip meal breaks, whether voluntarily or involuntarily

Within next 90 days

Sign‐on & Referral Bonuses  Extended list of eligible; increased amounts for some classifications ASAP implementation 
(30 days or less)



Questions?



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
September 19, 2018 
 
Subject:  Comments Regarding Budget Variances for Operating Expenses – July 2018 
 
Recommended Action:  Receive and File 
 
Summary:   
 

The following items have budget variances for the month of July 2018:  
 
Gross Patient Revenue: 
Gross patient revenue has an unfavorable budget variance for the month of July mainly due to late charges for 
the surgery department that were not entered into the system before month‐end.   These late charges will be 
accounted for in August.   
 
Indigent Funding: 
Indigent  funding  revenue  has  a  favorable  budget  variance  for  the  month  due  to  a  decision  to  reserve  less 
revenue from the indigent programs in FY 2019 than was planned when the budget was prepared.  Additional 
information received about these programs after the budget was prepared supports a high likelihood that these 
funds will be received.  This decision was also made in an effort to properly match revenue with the period that 
it is earned.      
 
Other Revenue: 
Other  revenue has an unfavorable budget variance  for  July due  to  the  timing of  the  receipt of KHS physician 
recruitment grant funding.  Grant funds will be received in a subsequent month during FY 2019. 
 
Benefits Expense: 
Benefits  expense  has  an  unfavorable  budget  variance  for  the month  of  July  due  to  front‐loaded  benefits  for 
residents.   Benefits expense should realize a favorable budget variance in August 2018 to adjust on a year‐to‐
date basis. 
  
Registry Nurses: 
Registry nurses expense has an unfavorable budget variance for the month of July.  Kern Medical continues to 
rely on contracted nurse staffing to supplement the nursing departments while aggressively trying to recruit full 
time employed nurses. 
 
Medical Fees: 
Medical fees have an unfavorable budget variance for the month of June primarily because of increased Locum 
Tenens fees for trauma coverage.  Weatherby Locums fees were also higher than average for the month. 
 
Mercer human resources consulting.  Both of these vendors were included in the FY 2018 budget. 
 



Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Supplies Expense: 
Supplies expense has an unfavorable budget  variance  for  the month of  July due  to  increased pharmaceutical 
expenses for the hospital and all of the clinics.  Unusual drugs not typically dispensed accounted for some of the 
variance.  Prostheses and other surgical supplies expenses were also higher than average for the month. 

 
Purchased Services: 
Purchased services has an unfavorable budget variance for the month due in part to an under accrual for Hall 
Ambulance fees in the prior month.  HFRI revenue cycle management fees were also higher than average for the 
month. 
 
Other Expenses: 
Other  expenses  are  over  budget  for  the  month  of  July  due  in  part  to  a  down  payment  made  to  Alliance 
Insurance for FY 2019 professional liability insurance.  Utilities expenses were also much higher than average as 
is typical during the summer season.  
 
Interest Expense: 
Interest  expense was  budgeted  low  for  FY  2019  based  on  amortization  schedules  for  the  pension  obligation 
bonds  that do not  accurately  report  the  expense actually  charged  to  Kern Medical.    A  decision was made  to 
accrue additional  interest expense each month of FY 2019.   This will more properly match interest expense to 
the period actually incurred and avoid the need for a large true‐up adjustment for interest expense at year‐end. 



BOARD OF GOVERNORS’ FINANCIAL REPORT
KERN MEDICAL – JULY 2018

SEPTEMBER 2018



Slide 1



Slide 2



Slide 3



Slide 4



Slide 5



Slide 6



Slide 7



Slide 8



Slide 9



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
September 19, 2018 
 
Subject:  Kern County Hospital Authority, Chief Executive Officer Report 
 
Recommended Action:  Receive and File 
 
Summary: 
 
The Chief Executive Officer has provided the attached 3‐month trend Analysis: Volume and Strategic Indicators 
for Kern Medical 



BOARD OF GOVERNORS’ VOLUMES REPORT
KERN MEDICAL – JULY 2018

SEPTEMBER 2018



Slide 1



Slide 2



Slide 3



Slide 4



Slide 5



Slide 6



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Health and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2) 
 
On the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Governors will hold 
a closed session on September 19, 2018, to discharge its responsibility to evaluate and 
improve the quality of care rendered by health facilities and health practitioners. The 
closed session involves: 
 
 
   X    Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health practitioners (Health 
and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) –   
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1) 
 
On the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Governors will hold 
a closed session on September 19, 2018, the premature disclosure of which would create 
a substantial probability of depriving the authority of a substantial economic benefit or 
opportunity.  The closed session involves: 
 
 
   X    Request for Closed Session for the purpose of discussion or taking action on 
authority trade secrets (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1)) –  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

 
On the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Governors will hold a closed 
session on September 19, 2018, to consider: 
 
 
   X     CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS – Kern County Property 

Assessor Parcel Number: 120-181-54; Property Owners: Mushtaq Ahmed and Rehmat 
Ahmed; Agency Negotiators: Russell V. Judd, Chief Executive Officer and Scott 
Thygerson, Chief Strategy Officer; Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Payment 
(Government Code Section 54956.8) 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Government Code Section 54956.9 
 
Based on the advice of Counsel, the Board of Governors is holding a closed session on 
September 19, 2018, to confer with, or receive advice from Counsel regarding pending 
litigation, because discussion in open session concerning this matter would prejudice the 
position of the authority in the litigation. The closed session involves: 
 
 
   X     CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Maria McCoy v. Kern 
Medical Center, Workers’ Compensation Appeals Board Case No. ADJ7197264 – 
 

 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Government Code Section 54956.9 
 
Based on the advice of Counsel, the Board of Governors is holding a closed session on 
September 19, 2018, to confer with, or receive advice from Counsel regarding pending 
litigation, because discussion in open session concerning this matter would prejudice the 
position of the authority in the litigation. The closed session involves: 
 
 
   X     CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), (e)(2).) Number of cases: Two (2) 
Significant exposure to litigation in the opinion of the Board of Governors on the 
advice of legal counsel, based on: Facts and circumstances, including, but not 
limited to, an accident, disaster, incident, or transactional occurrence that might 
result in litigation against the Authority and that are known to a potential plaintiff or 
plaintiffs – 
 
 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

 
On the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Governors will hold a closed 
session on September 19, 2018, to consider: 
 
 
   X     CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Agency designated representatives: 

Chief Executive Officer Russell V. Judd, and designated staff - Employee organizations: 
Unrepresented Employees (Government Code Section 54957.6)  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

 
On the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Governors will hold a closed 
session on September 19, 2018, to consider: 
 
 
   X     CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Agency designated representatives: 

Vice President & General Counsel Karen S. Barnes and designated staff – Unrepresented 
Employee: Chief Executive Officer (Government Code Section 54957.6) 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

 
On the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Governors will hold 
a closed session on September 19, 2018, to consider: 
 
 
   X    PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION - Title: Chief Executive 
Officer (Government Code Section 54957) –     
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 


	09.19.18  10b HPG Agmt.pdf
	Schedule “A-2”
	Project Background




